

Hub Group, Inc. 2000 Clearwater Drive OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

April 12, 2021

Dear Fellow Stockholder:

We will hold the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of Hub Group, Inc. at 10:00 a.m. Central time on Monday, May 24, 2021. However, due to the continuing public health impact of the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19) and to support the health and well-being of our employees and stockholders, the Annual Meeting will be held in a virtual meeting format only. You will not be able to attend the Annual Meeting physically.

As in prior years, we have again elected to provide access to our proxy materials over the Internet under the Securities and Exchange Commission's "notice and access" rules. The accompanying Notice of 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement describes the matters to be acted upon and is available at **www.proxyvote.com** and at our corporate website **www.hubgroup.com/proxy**. The Annual Report to Stockholders (which includes our Annual Report on Form 10-K) also is available at those websites. We believe that providing our proxy materials over the Internet increases the ability of our stockholders to obtain the information they need, while reducing the environmental impact of the Annual Meeting and our costs associated with the physical printing and mailing of proxy materials.

It is important that your shares be represented at the Annual Meeting. To be admitted to the Annual Meeting at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/HUBG2021, you must enter the control number found on your proxy card, voting instruction form or notice you previously received. You may vote during the Annual Meeting by following the instructions available on the meeting website during the meeting. We hope you will participate in the Annual Meeting. However, even if you anticipate attending the virtual meeting, we urge you to please vote your proxy either by mail, telephone or over the Internet in advance of the Annual Meeting to ensure that your shares will be represented.

I look forward to updating you on developments in our business at the Annual Meeting.

Sincerely,

DAVID P. YEAGER Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

PLEASE VOTE EITHER BY
MAIL, TELEPHONE OR OVER THE INTERNET
WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ANNUAL MEETING.



Hub Group, Inc. 2000 Clearwater Drive OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

NOTICE OF 2021 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To the Stockholders of Hub Group, Inc.:

The 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of Hub Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation, will be held exclusively online via the Internet on Monday, May 24, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. Central time for the following purposes:

- To elect the eight nominees listed in the accompanying proxy statement to the Company's board of directors:
- (2) To approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation paid to the Company's Named Executive Officers;
- (3) To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021; and
- (4) To transact such other business as may properly be presented at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

We plan to send a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Notice") to our stockholders instead of paper copies of our Proxy Statement and 2020 Annual Report to Stockholders. The Notice, which is expected to be mailed to stockholders on or about April 12, 2021, contains instructions on how to access our materials on the Internet, as well as instructions on obtaining a paper copy of the proxy materials. The Notice is not a form for voting and presents only an overview of the proxy materials.

The Annual Meeting will be presented exclusively online at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/HUBG2021. You will be able to attend the Annual Meeting online, vote your shares electronically and submit your questions to management during the Annual Meeting by visiting www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/HUBG2021.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the virtual Annual Meeting, please vote by telephone or over the Internet, or by completing, signing, dating and returning your proxy card or voting instruction form so that your shares will be represented at the Annual Meeting. Instructions for voting are described in the Notice, the Proxy Statement and the proxy card.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 29, 2021, as the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Lougher & Beck

Oak Brook, Illinois April 12, 2021 DOUGLAS G. BECK

Secretary



Table of Contents

SOLICITATION, MEETING AND VOTING INFORMATION	1
PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	8
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	15
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	19
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE	20
TRANSACTIONS WITH MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS	21
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	22
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	22
Compensation Committee Report	29
2020 Summary Compensation Table	30
2020 Grant of Plan-Based Awards	32
Outstanding Equity Awards at 2020 Fiscal Year-End	33
2020 Option Exercises and Stock Vested	34
2020 Pension Benefits	35
2020 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation	36
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control	37
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	37
Compensation Risk Considerations	38
Pay Ratio Disclosure	39
SECURITY OWNERSHIP	40
PROPOSAL 2: ADVISORY VOTE TO APPROVE NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER	
COMPENSATION	42
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT	43
PROPOSAL 3: RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS	44
FEES PAID TO AUDITORS	45
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2022 ANNIJAL MEETING	46

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE STOCKHOLDER MEETING TO BE HELD ON MAY 24, 2021

This Notice of 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, our Proxy Statement, our 2020 Annual Report to Stockholders (which includes our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020) and a form of proxy card or voting instruction form (collectively, the "Proxy Materials") are available at www.proxyvote.com. You will need your Notice of Internet Availability ("Notice") or proxy card to access the Proxy Materials there. A copy of our Proxy Materials also can be found on our corporate website – www.hubgroup.com/proxy.

As permitted by rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), we are furnishing our Proxy Materials over the Internet to some of our stockholders. This means that some stockholders will not receive paper copies of these documents but instead will receive only a Notice containing instructions on how to access the Proxy Materials over the Internet and how to request a paper copy of our Proxy Materials. Stockholders who do not receive a Notice will receive a paper copy of the Proxy Materials by mail, unless they have previously requested delivery of proxy materials electronically.





HUB GROUP, INC. 2000 Clearwater Drive OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS 60523

PROXY STATEMENT

Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held on May 24, 2021

SOLICITATION, MEETING AND VOTING INFORMATION

Q: What is this document?

A: This document is the Proxy Statement of Hub Group, Inc. that is being made available to stockholders on the Internet, or sent to stockholders upon request, in connection with our Annual Meeting of stockholders to be held on Monday, May 24, 2021 exclusively online via the Internet (the "Annual Meeting"). A proxy card is also being furnished with this document, if you requested printed copies of the proxy materials. We have tried to make this document simple and easy to understand. The SEC encourages companies to use "plain English," and we always try to communicate with you clearly and effectively. We refer to Hub Group, Inc. throughout as "we," "us," the "Company" or "Hub Group." Additionally, unless otherwise noted or required by context, "2021," "2020," and "2019," refer to our fiscal years ended or ending December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively.

Q: What documents constitute our "proxy materials"?

A: The Proxy Materials include the Notice of 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Proxy Statement, our 2020 Annual Report to Stockholders (which includes our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020) and the proxy card or voting instruction form.

Q: What is a proxy, who is asking for it, and who is paying for the cost to solicit it?

A: A proxy is your legal designation of another person, called a "proxy," to vote your stock. The document that designates someone as your proxy is also called a proxy or a proxy card.

Our directors, officers, and employees are soliciting your proxy on behalf of our Board of Directors. Those persons will not receive additional payment or compensation for doing so except reimbursement for any related out-of-pocket expenses. We will, upon request, reimburse brokers, banks, custodians and similar organizations for their expenses in forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners. Solicitation of proxies by mail may be supplemented by telephone, personal contact, email and other electronic means, advertisements and personal solicitation, or otherwise. The Company will pay the expense of any proxy solicitation. We may hire a proxy solicitation firm at standard industry rates to assist in the solicitation of proxies.

Q: Why did I receive a one-page notice in the mail regarding the Internet availability of proxy materials instead of a full set of proxy materials?

A: Pursuant to SEC rules, the Company is using the Internet as the primary means of furnishing proxy materials to stockholders again this year. Accordingly, the Company is sending a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Notice") to the Company's stockholders. If you received a Notice by mail, you will not receive a printed copy of the proxy materials unless you request one. Instead, the Notice will instruct you as to how you may access and review the proxy materials online. Instructions on how to request a printed copy of the proxy materials also may be found in the Notice. In addition, stockholders may request to receive proxy materials in printed form by mail or electronically by e-mail on an ongoing

basis. The Company encourages stockholders to take advantage of the availability of the proxy materials on the Internet to help reduce the environmental impact of its Annual Meetings and the cost to the Company associated with the physical printing and mailing of materials.

Q: Why am I receiving these materials?

A: You received the Notice and you are receiving this document because you were one of our stockholders on March 29, 2021, the record date for the Annual Meeting. We are soliciting your proxy (i.e., your permission) to vote your shares of Hub Group stock upon certain matters at the Annual Meeting.

Q: What if I have more than one account?

A: Please vote proxies for all accounts to ensure that all your shares are voted. You may consolidate multiple accounts through our transfer agent, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC ("AST"), online at www.astfinancial.com or by calling (800) 937-5449.

Q: Who may access the virtual Annual Meeting?

A: Only stockholders and their proxy holders will be able to access the virtual Annual Meeting. As indicated, we will not have an in-person Annual Meeting. You will need to enter the 16-digit control number received with your proxy card or the Notice to enter the Annual Meeting via the online web portal. See "If I vote by proxy, can I still access the Annual Meeting and vote there if I choose?" below.

Q: How many votes must be present to hold the Annual Meeting? Do abstentions and "broker non-votes" count?

A: Our Amended and Restated Bylaws (the "Bylaws") provide that the presence of the holders of one-third of the shares of capital stock entitled to vote at a meeting, in person or represented by proxy, will constitute a quorum at the Annual Meeting. Stockholders who participate in the virtual Annual Meeting will be deemed to be present in person. A quorum must exist to conduct any business at the Annual Meeting. If a quorum is not present at the Annual Meeting, any officer entitled to preside at or to act as Secretary of the Annual Meeting will have power to adjourn the Annual Meeting from time to time until a quorum is present.

Abstentions will be treated as shares that are present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum. Additionally, broker non-votes are included in the calculation of the number of votes considered to be present at the Annual Meeting for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum only when there are "routine" matters to be voted upon. Because there is a "routine" matter to be voted upon at the Annual Meeting, broker non-votes also will be included for purposes of determining a quorum. See "What are 'broker votes' and 'broker non-votes'?" below.

Q: Who may vote at the Annual Meeting?

A: Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 29, 2021 (the "Record Date"), are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. As of that date, there were 33,764,014 shares of Class A Common Stock (each a "Class A Share") and 662,296 shares of Class B Common Stock (each a "Class B Share," and collectively with the Class A Shares, the "Shares") outstanding and entitled to be voted at the Annual Meeting. Each Class A Share is entitled to one (1) vote and each Class B Share is entitled to approximately eighty-four (84) votes.

Q: Will a list of stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting be available?

A: In accordance with Delaware law, a list of stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for any purpose germane to the Annual Meeting beginning May 10, 2021 at our corporate headquarters during regular business hours. In addition, during the Annual Meeting, that list of stockholders will be available for examination at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/HUBG2021.

Q: What am I voting on at the Annual Meeting?

- A: There are three proposals to be considered and voted on at the Annual Meeting:
 - To elect the eight director nominees identified in this Proxy Statement to our Board of Directors, each to serve a one-year term expiring at the earlier of the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2022 Annual Meeting") or upon his or her successor being elected and qualified;
 - To approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers ("say-on-pay" vote); and
 - To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP ("E&Y") as our independent registered public accountants for 2021.

We will also consider other business that properly comes before the Annual Meeting in accordance with Delaware law and our Bylaws.

Q: What are my choices when voting on the election of the eight director nominees identified in this Proxy Statement, and what vote is needed to elect nominees to the Board of Directors?

- A: Regarding the vote on the election of the eight director nominees identified in this Proxy Statement to serve until the 2022 Annual Meeting or until his or her successor is elected and qualified, stockholders may:
 - vote "FOR" all of the director nominees;
 - vote in "FOR ALL EXCEPT" specific director nominees; or
 - vote to "WITHHOLD ALL" authority to vote for all director nominees.

Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by the shares represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors at the Annual Meeting provided a quorum is present. Withholding of authority to vote in the election and broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of the election, provided a quorum is present. As a result, the eight nominees receiving the highest number of "FOR" votes will be elected as directors.

Q: What are my choices when voting on the advisory (non-binding) proposal regarding the compensation paid to the Company's Named Executive Officers ("say-on-pay"), and what vote is needed to approve the advisory say-on-pay proposal?

- A: Regarding the advisory (non-binding) proposal on the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers, stockholders may:
 - vote "FOR" the advisory say-on-pay proposal;
 - vote "AGAINST" the advisory say-on-pay proposal; or
 - "ABSTAIN" from voting on the advisory say-on-pay proposal.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote is required to approve, on an advisory basis, the say-on-pay vote. As an advisory vote, this proposal is not binding upon us. However, our Compensation Committee, which is responsible for designing and administering our executive compensation program, values the opinions expressed by our stockholders and will consider the outcome of the vote when making future compensation decisions. For additional information, please see the discussion on page 37 of this Proxy Statement.

Q: What are my choices when voting on the ratification of the appointment of E&Y as the Company's independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, and what vote is needed to ratify their appointment?

- A: Regarding the vote on the proposal to ratify the appointment of E&Y as the Company's independent registered public accountants for 2021, stockholders may:
 - vote "**FOR**" the ratification;
 - vote "AGAINST" the ratification; or
 - "ABSTAIN" from voting on the ratification.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote is required to approve the proposal to ratify the appointment of E&Y as our independent registered public accountants for 2021. For additional information, please see the discussion on page 44 of this Proxy Statement.

Q: How does the Company's Board of Directors recommend that I vote?

- A: Please see the information included in this Proxy Statement relating to the proposals to be considered and voted on at the Annual Meeting. Our Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote:
 - "FOR ALL" of the eight nominees to our Board of Directors identified in this Proxy Statement;
 - "FOR" the advisory (non-binding) proposal regarding the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers ("say-on-pay"); and
 - "FOR" the ratification of the appointment of E&Y as our independent registered public accountants for 2021.

Q: How will the Class B Shares be voted at the Annual Meeting?

A: As of March 29, 2021, members of the Yeager family, directly or by trust, own all 662,296 outstanding Class B Shares (the "Class B Stockholders"). Consequently, the Class B Stockholders control approximately 62.2% of the voting power on all matters presented for stockholder action. The Class B Stockholders are parties to an Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreement, dated April 22, 2014 (the "Stockholders' Agreement"), pursuant to which they have agreed to vote all of their Class B Shares in accordance with the vote of the holders of a majority of such Class B Shares, The Stockholders' Agreement requires, among other things, that the Class B Stockholders hold a meeting prior to the Annual Meeting so that they can determine how the Class B Shares will be voted on matters presented at the Annual Meeting. Under the Stockholders' Agreement, if there is a deadlock among Class B Stockholders or if a quorum of Class B Stockholders cannot be achieved at the Annual Meeting of Class B Stockholders after two attempts, each Class B Stockholder has agreed to vote or cause to be voted all of its Class B Shares as recommended by the independent directors of the Board of Directors. On March 29, 2021, the independent directors unanimously resolved, in the event of a deadlock or if a quorum cannot be achieved at the meeting of Class B Stockholders after two attempts, to recommend that the Class B Stockholders vote FOR each of the proposals being submitted to stockholders at the Annual Meeting, consistent with the Board's recommendations set forth above.

Q: How do I vote?

A: If your shares are registered directly in your name with our transfer agent, AST, you are considered a stockholder of record with respect to those shares. If you are a record holder, the Notice is being sent to you directly by Broadridge Investor Communication Solutions, Inc. ("Broadridge"). Please carefully consider the information contained in this Proxy Statement and, whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, please vote by (i) accessing the Internet website specified on the Notice, (ii) calling the toll-free number specified on your proxy card, if you requested printed copies of the proxy materials or (iii) marking, signing and returning your proxy card promptly, if you requested printed copies of the proxy materials, so that we can be assured of having a quorum present at the Annual Meeting and so that your shares may be voted in accordance with your wishes, even if you later decide to attend the Annual Meeting.

If you hold shares in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee you may be able to vote those shares by Internet or telephone depending on the voting procedures used by your broker, bank or other nominee, as explained below under the question "How do I vote if my shares are held in "street name" by a broker, bank or other nominee?"

Q: How do I vote if my shares are held in "street name" by a broker, bank or other nominee?

A: If your shares are held by a broker, bank or other nominee (this is called "street name"), your broker, bank or other nominee will send you instructions for voting those shares. Many (but not all) brokerage firms, banks and other nominees participate in a program provided through Broadridge that offers Internet and telephone voting options.

Q: If I vote by proxy, can I still access the Annual Meeting and vote there if I choose?

A: Yes. If you are a stockholder of record, the method you use to vote will not limit your right to vote at the virtual Annual Meeting if you decide to participate. As indicated, we are hosting the Annual Meeting exclusively online at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/HUBG2021. There will be no physical location at which stockholders may attend the Annual Meeting, but stockholders may attend and participate in the meeting electronically. Stockholders who participate in the virtual Annual Meeting will be deemed to be present in person and will be able to vote during the Annual Meeting at the times that the polls are open. Stockholders who wish to attend the meeting should go to www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/HUBG2021 at least 10 minutes before the beginning of the meeting to register their attendance and complete the verification procedures to confirm that they were stockholders of record as of March 29, 2021. The Notice includes instructions on how to participate in the Annual Meeting and how to vote your shares by accessing the virtual Annual Meeting via the Internet. You will need to enter the 16-digit control number received with your proxy card or Notice to enter the Annual Meeting via the online web portal.

Q: If my shares are held in "street name" by a broker, bank or other nominee, may I still access the Annual Meeting?

A: Yes. Beneficial owners whose stock is held for them in street name by their brokers or other nominees may also attend the meeting by going to www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/HUBG2021 at least 10 minutes before the beginning of the meeting to register their attendance and complete the verification procedures to confirm that they were stockholders as of the record date. Such beneficial owners may not vote at the meeting, and may only cause their shares to be voted by providing voting instructions to the persons who hold the beneficial owners' shares for them. Beneficial owners will need to provide the name of the broker or other nominee that holds their shares to gain access to the virtual meeting.

Q: May I ask questions?

A: Yes. You may submit a question in two ways. If you want to ask a question before the meeting, then beginning at 9:00 a.m., Central Time, on May 19, 2021, and until 11:59 p.m., Central Time, on May 23, 2021, you may log into www.proxyvote.com and enter your 16-digit control number. Once past the login screen, click on "Question for Management," type in your question, and click "Submit." Alternatively, you will be able to submit questions live during the meeting by accessing the meeting at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/HUBG2021, typing your question into the "Ask a Question" field, and clicking "Submit." Only questions pertinent to meeting matters will be answered during the meeting, subject to time constraints.

Q: Is cumulative voting allowed? Do I have dissenters' or appraisal rights?

A: No. Cumulative voting rights are not authorized, and dissenters' rights and rights of appraisal are not applicable to the matters being voted upon at the Annual Meeting.

O: What are "broker votes" and "broker non-votes"?

A: On certain "routine" matters, brokerage firms have discretionary authority under applicable stock exchange rules to vote their customers' shares if their customers do not provide voting instructions. When a brokerage firm votes its customers' shares on a routine matter without receiving voting instructions (referred to as a "broker vote"), these shares are counted both for establishing a quorum to conduct business at the Annual Meeting and in determining the number of shares voted "FOR" or "AGAINST" the "routine" matter. For purposes of the Annual Meeting, Proposal 3 – the ratification of the appointment of E&Y as our independent registered public accountants for 2021 is considered a "routine" matter.

Under applicable stock exchange rules, Proposal 1 – the election of directors, and Proposal 2 – the advisory (non-binding) vote on the compensation of our Named Executive Officers ("say-on-pay" vote) are considered "non-routine" matters for which brokerage firms do not have discretionary authority to vote their customers' shares if their customers did not provide voting instructions. Therefore, for purposes of the Annual Meeting, if you hold your stock through a brokerage account, your brokerage firm may not vote your shares on your behalf on either Proposal 1 - the election of directors, or Proposal 2 – the advisory (non-binding) vote on the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers

("say-on-pay"), without receiving instructions from you. When a brokerage firm does not have the authority to vote its customers' shares or does not exercise its authority, these situations are referred to as "broker non-votes." Broker non-votes are only counted for establishing a quorum and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

We encourage you to provide instructions to your brokerage firm, bank or other nominee by voting your proxy. This action ensures your shares will be voted at the Annual Meeting on all matters up for consideration.

Q: What if I abstain from voting?

A: You have the option to "ABSTAIN" from voting with respect to Proposal 2 – the advisory (non-binding) vote on the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers ("say-on-pay"), and Proposal 3 – the ratification of the appointment of E&Y as the Company's independent registered public accountants for 2021. Abstentions with respect to these proposals are counted for purposes of establishing a quorum. If a quorum is present, abstentions will have the same effect as a vote against these proposals.

Q: May I revoke my proxy after I have delivered my proxy?

A: Yes. You may revoke your proxy at any time before the polls close by submitting a subsequent proxy with a later date by using the Internet, by telephone or by mail or by sending our Corporate Secretary a written revocation. Your proxy also will be considered revoked if you attend the Annual Meeting and vote via the virtual portal. If your shares are held in "street name" by a broker, bank or other nominee, you must contact your broker, bank or other nominee to change your vote or obtain a proxy to vote your shares if you wish to cast your vote during the virtual Annual Meeting.

Q: How will my shares be voted if I return my proxy card or vote via telephone or Internet? What if I return my proxy card but do not provide voting instructions or complete the telephone or Internet voting procedures but do not specify how I want to vote my shares?

A: Our Board of Directors has named David P. Yeager, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Phillip D. Yeager, our President and Chief Operating Officer, and Douglas G. Beck, our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary, as official proxy holders. They will vote all proxies, or record an abstention or withholding, in accordance with the directions on the proxy.

All shares represented by properly executed proxies, unless previously revoked, will be voted at the Annual Meeting as you direct.

IF YOU SIGN AND RETURN YOUR PROXY CARD BUT GIVE NO DIRECTION OR COMPLETE THE TELEPHONE OR INTERNET VOTING PROCEDURES BUT DO NOT SPECIFY HOW YOU WANT TO VOTE YOUR SHARES, THE SHARES WILL BE VOTED "FOR ALL" OF THE PERSONS NAMED HEREIN AS DIRECTORS; "FOR" THE PROPOSAL REGARDING AN ADVISORY (NON-BINDING) VOTE ON THE COMPENSATION PAID TO OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS ("SAY-ON-PAY") AND "FOR" THE RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF E&Y AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FOR 2021.

Q: Who will count the votes?

A: A representative of Broadridge has been appointed as an inspector of elections for the Annual Meeting. That person will tabulate votes cast by proxy or during the Annual Meeting as well as determine whether a quorum is present.

Q: Where can I find voting results of the Annual Meeting?

A: We will announce preliminary voting results at the Annual Meeting and publish final results on a Current Report on Form 8-K that we expect to file with the SEC within four business days after the Annual Meeting (a copy of which will be available on the "Investors" section of our website, www.hubgroup.com, under the link "SEC Filings"). If our final voting results are not available within four business days after the Annual

Meeting, we will file a Current Report on Form 8-K reporting the preliminary voting results and subsequently file the final voting results in an amendment to the Current Report on Form 8-K within four business days after the final voting results are known to us.

Q: May I propose actions for consideration at the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders or nominate individuals to serve as directors?

A: You may submit proposals for consideration at future stockholder meetings, including director nominations. Please see "PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS – Can stockholders recommend or nominate directors?" and "STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2022 ANNUAL MEETING" for more details.

The Board of Directors knows of no matters to be presented at the Annual Meeting other than those set forth in the Notice of 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders enclosed herewith. However, if other matters do come before the Annual Meeting, it is intended that the holders of the proxies will vote thereon in their discretion. Any such other matter will require for its approval the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast by shares represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at such Annual Meeting, provided a quorum is present, or such greater vote as may be required under the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Company's Bylaws or applicable law.

Q: Whom should I contact with questions about the Annual Meeting?

A: If you have any questions about this Proxy Statement or the Annual Meeting, please contact Douglas G. Beck, our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary, at 2000 Clearwater Drive, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523 or by telephone at (855) 353-0896.

O: What information is available on the Internet?

A: A copy of this Notice of Annual Meeting, our Proxy Statement and 2020 Annual Report to Stockholders (which includes our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020) and the proxy card or voting instructions are available for download free of charge at www.proxyvote.com.

Additionally, our website address is www.hubgroup.com, which is used to distribute important Company information. At the "Investors" tab of our website (under the link "SEC Filings"), we make available, free of charge, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements, ownership reports on Forms 3, 4 and 5 and any amendments to those reports as soon as practicable after they are electronically filed with the SEC.

Information from our website is not incorporated by reference into this Proxy Statement.

PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

What is the structure of the Board of Directors?

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation requires that our Board of Directors consist of 3 to 12 members, with the exact number set by the Board. The Board size is currently fixed at eight. All directors are elected annually by our stockholders.

How are directors identified and nominated?

Directors may be nominated by the Board of Directors or by stockholders as described below under "Can stockholders recommend or nominate directors?" The Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for identifying, evaluating and recommending qualified director candidates, including the director slate to be presented to stockholders at the Annual Meeting, to our Board, which makes the ultimate election or nomination determination, as applicable. The Nominating and Governance Committee may use a variety of methods to identify potential director candidates, such as recommendations by our directors, management, stockholders or third-party search firms. Neither the Company nor the Nominating and Governance Committee currently utilizes the services of any search firm to identify or assist in identifying or evaluating potential nominees.

Does the Board consider diversity when identifying director nominees?

Yes. The Nominating and Governance Committee seeks to obtain candidates who will provide a diversity of viewpoints, professional experience, education and skills that complement those already existing on the Board. In addition, in selecting directors, the Nominating and Governance Committee will consider the need to strengthen the Board by providing a diversity of persons in terms of their expertise, age, gender, race, ethnicity, education, and other attributes that contribute to the Board's diversity. In performing its responsibilities for identifying, screening and recommending candidates to the Board, the Nominating & Governance Committee (i) ensures that candidates with a diversity of ethnicity and gender are included in any pool of candidates from which Board nominees are chosen, and (ii) considers diverse candidates from nonexecutive corporate positions and non-traditional environments. Of the eight members of the Board, two are women and one is ethnically diverse.

How are nominees evaluated; what are the threshold qualifications?

The Nominating and Governance Committee is charged with recommending to our Board only those candidates that it believes are qualified to serve as Board members consistent with the criteria for selection of new directors adopted from time to time by the Board.

In determining a candidate's suitability for consideration for membership on the Board, the Nominating and Governance Committee reviews all proposed nominees for the Board, including those proposed by stockholders, in accordance with the mandate contained in its charter. The Nominating and Governance Committee assesses a candidate's independence, background, and experience, as well as our current Board's skill needs. With respect to incumbent directors considered for re-election, the Nominating and Governance Committee also assesses each director's meeting attendance record and suitability for continued service. In addition, the Committee determines whether nominees are in a position to devote an adequate amount of time to the effective performance of director duties and possess the following threshold characteristics: informed judgment, integrity and accountability, record of achievement, understanding of the Company's business or other related industries, a cooperative approach, loyalty, the ability to consult with and advise management, and such other factors as the Nominating and Governance Committee determines are relevant considering the needs of the Board of Directors and the Company. The Nominating and Governance Committee recommends candidates, including those submitted by stockholders, only if it believes a candidate's knowledge, experience, and expertise would strengthen the Board and that the candidate is committed to representing the long-term interests of all Hub Group stockholders.

Who are the nominees this year?

All nominees for election as directors at the Annual Meeting, consisting of the eight incumbent directors who were elected at the 2020 annual meeting of stockholders, were nominated by the Board of Directors for election by stockholders at the Annual Meeting upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee. Our Board believes that each of the nominees can devote an adequate amount of time to the effective performance of director duties and possesses all of the threshold qualifications identified above.

If elected, each nominee would hold office until the 2022 Annual Meeting or until his or her successor is elected and qualified or until his or her earlier death, resignation, retirement, disqualification or removal.

The following lists the nominees, their ages at the date of this proxy statement, and the calendar year in which they first became a director, along with their biographies and the specific experience, qualifications, attributes or skills that led the Board to conclude that each nominee should serve as a member of our Board of Directors.

Name and Committee Memberships	Age	Business Experience During the Past Five Years and Other Information		
David P. Yeager	68	David P. Yeager has served as the Company's Chairman of the Board since November 2008 and as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 1995. Mr. Yeager was Vice Chairman of the Board from March 1995 through November 2008. From October 1985 through December 1991, Mr. Yeager was President of Hub Chicago. From 1983 to October 1985, he served as Vice President, Marketing of Hub Chicago. Mr. Yeager started working for the Company in 1975. Mr. Yeager received a Masters in Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Dayton.		
		Mr. Yeager formerly served as the Chair of the University of Dayton Board of Trustees. He has been an employee of the Company for over 40 years and in that time has helped grow the Company from a small family business into the nearly \$3.5 billion enterprise it is today. Mr. Yeager has experience in all aspects of the business, including acting as founder and President of both the Pittsburgh Hub (1975) and the St. Louis Hub (1980). Mr. Yeager's industry experience and Company knowledge make him uniquely suited to serve as our Chairman of the Board.		
Mary H. Boosalis Committees: Audit Compensation Nominating and Governance	66	Mary H. Boosalis has served as a director of the Company since May 2018. She has served as the President and CEO of Premier Health since 2017, one of the largest health systems in southwest Ohio. Prior to her current role, Ms. Boosalis served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer for the organization. Ms. Boosalis joined the health system in 1986, progressively expanding her leadership roles, including five years as President and CEO of Miami Valley Hospital. Ms. Boosalis is a diplomat of the American College of Healthcare Executives, and a member of the Ohio Hospital Association and the Greater Dayton Area Hospital Association Boards. She is the Chair of the University of Dayton Board of Trustees. Additionally, she is a member of the Dayton Business Committee and the Dayton Development Coalition Board. Ms. Boosalis has been named as an Ohio Most Powerful and Influential Woman by the Ohio Diversity Council, as a Woman of Influence by the Dayton YWCA, as an inaugural member of the Dayton Business Hall of Fame, and to the Top 10 Women list by the Dayton Daily News. In 2019 and 2021, Modern Healthcare recognized her with its biennial recognition as being one of the Top 25 Women Leaders in Healthcare in the country. In 2020, Modern Healthcare named her to the national list of 50 Most Influential Clinical Executives. Ms. Boosalis earned a bachelor's degree in Nursing, magna		

cum laude, from California State University at Fresno and a master's degree in Health Services Administration, magna cum laude, from Arizona State University. In her capacity as President and Chief

Name and Committee Membership
•

Business Experience During the Past Five Years

and Other Information

Executive Officer of Premier Health, Ms. Boosalis has gained valuable executive experience in all aspects of business. Having served on numerous civic committees and boards, Ms. Boosalis is able to advise on public outreach and best practices across different industries.

James C. Kenny

Committees:

Audit Compensation (Chair) Nominating and Governance

67

Age

James C. Kenny has served as a director of the Company since May 2016. Currently retired, Mr. Kenny has served as a director of Kenny Industries, LLC, since 2006. Kenny Industries is a holding company that owns, among other assets, office and industrial parks in northern Illinois. From 2011 until April 2020, Mr. Kenny served as a director of Kerry Group, PLC, a company traded on the London and Dublin stock exchanges with a market capitalization of 18 billion euro. Mr. Kenny served as a member of Kerry Group's Nominating and Compensation Committees and was Chair of the Committee to select a new Chairman of the Kerry Group during his time as a director.

Mr. Kenny served as Executive Vice President and Director of Kenny Construction Company from 1994 until the company was sold in 2012. He also served as President of Kenny Management Services from 2006 to 2012. Kenny Construction Company, founded in 1927, was involved in building projects across the United States and Kenny Management Services oversaw large, complex construction projects such as the Chicago Midway Airport expansion and the Chicago Bears' stadium renovation. From 2003 until 2006, Mr. Kenny served as United States Ambassador to Ireland. Mr. Kenny received his Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Bradley University.

Mr. Kenny has more than three decades of business experience, as well as three years of diplomatic experience serving as an ambassador. He has extensive experience running a family business and serving on its board. As a director, he has been involved in acquisition strategy, succession planning, union relations and governance. He also has excellent knowledge of politics and a large network, both locally and nationally, which is a great asset for a company in a regulated industry. Mr. Kenny brings a unique blend of experiences to the Board of Directors.

Peter B. McNitt

66

Committees:

Audit (Chair) Compensation Nominating and Governance

Peter B. McNitt has served as a director of the Company since May 2017 and as our Lead Director since November 2019. Mr. McNitt, currently retired, most recently served as Vice Chair of BMO Harris Bank, N.A. until December 2018. Prior to this position, Mr. McNitt held many leadership roles within BMO Harris, including Senior Vice President and Head of the Emerging Majors Midwest, Executive Vice President of U.S. Corporate Banking, Executive Managing Director of U.S. Investment Banking, and Vice Chair of Business Banking. Mr. McNitt currently serves as a director of Old Republic International Corporation (Insurance), where he is a member of the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee. He is a graduate of Amherst College and has attended Northwestern University's Graduate School of Management and the Graduate School of Credit and Finance at Stanford University.

Name and
Committee
Memberships

Age

Business Experience During the Past Five Years and Other Information

As a director, Mr. McNitt brings over 40 years of financial expertise assessing corporate strategies, financial performance, management succession and risk, as well a great deal of public company board experience. In addition to his role as our Lead Director, Mr. McNitt utilizes his financial expertise as Chair of our Audit Committee to help oversee and provide guidance on the Company's internal controls and financial practices.

Charles R. Reaves

82

Committees:

Audit Compensation Nominating and Governance (Chair) Charles R. Reaves has served as a director of the Company since February 1996. Since 1994, Mr. Reaves has been President and Chief Executive Officer of Reaves Enterprises, Inc., a real estate development company. From April 1962 until November 1994, Mr. Reaves worked for Sears Roebuck & Company in various positions, ultimately as President and Chief Executive Officer of Sears Logistics Services, Inc., a transportation, distribution and home delivery subsidiary of Sears Roebuck & Company. Mr. Reaves received a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Arkansas State University.

Having served for 32 years as an executive at Sears, Mr. Reaves understands the needs of large shippers and retailers. In his capacity as Chief Executive Officer of Sears Logistics Services, Inc., Mr. Reaves gained valuable executive experience running a large transportation organization. Mr. Reaves has used this experience, as well as his industry knowledge, to effectively advise the Company in his role as a Director. As Chair of our Nominating and Governance Committee, Mr. Reaves has also used his experience at Sears to help shape the Company's Governance Policies and oversee the succession planning process.

Martin P. Slark

66

Committees: Audit Compensation Nominating and Governance Martin P. Slark has served as a director of the Company since February 1996 and served as our Lead Director from November 2016 until November 2019. Mr. Slark was most recently employed by Molex Incorporated ("Molex"), a manufacturer of electronic, electrical and fiber optic interconnection products and systems, serving as its Chief Executive Officer from 2005 until his retirement in November 2018. Mr. Slark is a director of Liberty Mutual Holding Company, Inc., where he is Chair of the Risk Committee and sits on the Executive and Investment Committees. Additionally, Mr. Slark is a director of Northern Trust Corporation. Mr. Slark is a Companion of the British Institute of Management and received a Masters in Business Administration degree from the University of East London and a Post-Graduate Diploma in Management Studies from Portsmouth University.

As a former Chief Executive Officer of a multi-national company, Mr. Slark has extensive experience running a large organization. Mr. Slark, originally from England, worked for Molex for over 40 years in Europe, Asia and the United States. Mr. Slark's leadership skills, experience with strategic planning and contacts have been a significant benefit to the Board.

Name and
Committee
Memberships

Age

66

51

Business Experience During the Past Five Years and Other Information

Jonathan P. Ward

Committees:

Audit Compensation Nominating and Governance Jonathan P. Ward has served as a director of the Company since January 2012. Mr. Ward is an operating partner at Kohlberg & Co. and has been with that company since July 2009. He was previously chairman of the Chicago office of Lazard Ltd. and managing director of Lazard Freres & Co., LLC, joining Lazard in November 2006. Prior to Lazard, Mr. Ward was at The ServiceMaster Company for five years, where he began as President and Chief Executive Officer in 2001 and then became Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 2002. From 1997 to 2001, he was President and Chief Operating Officer of R.R. Donnelley & Sons Company, a commercial printing company. During his 23 years at R.R. Donnelley, he served in a variety of other leadership positions. He earned a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of New Hampshire and also has completed the Harvard Business School Advanced Management Program.

Mr. Ward was a director of SP Plus Corporation from October 2012 to May 2017, where he served as a member of the Compensation Committee. Additionally, Mr. Ward served as a director of Hillshire Brands Company (and Sara Lee Corporation prior to their merger) from October 2005 to August 2014, as director of KAR Auction Services, Inc. from December 2009 to June 2014, and as a director of United Stationers Inc. from July 2011 to June 2012.

Mr. Ward's service as an executive, combined with his leadership capabilities, make him well qualified to be a member of the Company's Board of Directors. Having served on numerous public company boards, Mr. Ward is able to advise as to best practices across multiple industries. Having served as a member of the Compensation Committee of SP Plus Corporation, Mr. Ward brings unique insight into other compensation models and approaches. Mr. Ward's experience and perspective make him a valuable member of the Company's Board of Directors.

Jenell R. Ross is the President of the Bob Ross Auto Group in Centerville, Ohio, a position that she assumed in 1997 upon the untimely death of her father, who had founded the business in 1974. Today, the dealership includes three franchises – Buick, GMC and Mercedes-Benz. The company's Mercedes-Benz dealership was the first African American-owned Mercedes-Benz dealership in the world. Ms. Ross is the sole second-generation African American female automobile dealer in the country. Under her leadership, the Bob Ross franchises have continued to rank as leaders in Buick, GMC and Mercedes-Benz sales and customer service.

Ms. Ross is an active member of her community, having served on the boards of numerous foundations and community service organizations. She currently is a member of the University of Dayton Board of Trustees and was previously the Chair of the board of directors of the Federal Reserve Board of Cleveland (Cincinnati branch) through 2020. Additionally, she serves as a Board Member for the Minority Business Partnership through the Dayton Chamber of Commerce and a Board Member of the Will Allen Foundation. She has previously served on the

Jenell R. Ross

Committees:

Audit Compensation Nominating and Governance

Name and
Committee
Memberships

Age

Business Experience During the Past Five Years and Other Information

Ohio Motor Vehicle Dealers Board and as Chair (2013) of the American International Automobile Dealers Association, a dealer-led organization representing more than 10,000 automobile dealer franchises. Ms. Ross has been recognized with numerous awards with respect to business achievements and public service. She earned a Bachelor's degree from Emory University in Atlanta.

In her capacity as President of the Bob Ross Auto Group and her participation in other related groups, Ms. Ross has gained valuable executive experience and leadership experience in all aspects of business. Having served on numerous civic committees and boards, Ms. Ross is able to advise on public outreach and best practices across different industries. Having served governmental agencies, she also is able to advise on interactions with regulators and governmental bodies.

Can stockholders recommend or nominate directors?

Yes. Stockholders may recommend candidates to our Nominating and Governance Committee by providing the same information within the same deadlines required for nominating candidates pursuant to the advance notice provisions in our Bylaws discussed below. Our Nominating Committee will consider such candidates and apply the same evaluation criteria to them as it applies to other director candidates. Stockholders also can nominate directors for election by stockholders by following the advance notice procedures in our Bylaws summarized below.

Whether recommending a candidate to our Nominating and Governance Committee or nominating a director for election by stockholders, timely written notice must be given and received by our Corporate Secretary at 2000 Clearwater Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523, either by personal delivery or by United States mail, not less than 60 days nor more than 90 days prior to: (1) the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of stockholders (between February 23, 2022 and March 25, 2022, in the case of the 2022 Annual Meeting); or (2) the date of the annual meeting, if the meeting is held more than 30 days before or more than 60 days, after the first anniversary of the prior year's annual meeting, unless the first public announcement of the annual meeting date is less than 100 days prior to such meeting date, in which case we must receive the notice by the 10th day following the public announcement. Each notice must describe the nomination in sufficient detail for the nomination to be summarized on the agenda for the meeting and must set forth: (i) the name and address, as it appears on the books of the Company, of the stockholder making the nomination, (ii) a representation that the stockholder is a holder of record of stock in the Company entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of stockholders and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to present the nomination, (iii) a statement of the class and number of shares beneficially owned by the stockholder, (iv) the name and address of any person to be nominated, (v) a description of all arrangements or understandings between the stockholder and each nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which the nomination or nominations are to be made by the stockholder, (vi) such other information regarding such nominee proposed by such stockholder as would be required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the SEC's proxy rules, and (vii) the consent of such nominee to serve as a director of the Company if elected. The presiding officer of the Annual Meeting of stockholders will, if the facts warrant, refuse to acknowledge a nomination not made in compliance with the foregoing procedure, and any such nomination not properly brought before the meeting will not be considered.

You should consult our Bylaws, posted on the "Investor Information—Corporate Governance" section of our website located at www.hubgroup.com, for more detailed information regarding the process summarized above. No stockholder nominees have been submitted for this year's annual meeting.

What if a nominee is unwilling or unable to serve?

We do not expect that any of the nominees will be unavailable for election, but if such a situation should arise, the persons designated as proxies on the proxy card are authorized to vote in accordance with their best judgment for such substitute person or persons as may be designated by the Board of Directors unless the stockholder has directed otherwise.

Are there any family relationships between any of the directors, executive officers or nominees?

Yes - David P. Yeager's son, Phillip D. Yeager, serves as our President and Chief Operating Officer.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders vote FOR the election of each of the 8 director nominees named in this proxy statement.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

What governance practices are in place to promote effective independent Board leadership?

The Board of Directors has adopted several governance practices to promote effective independent Board leadership, such as:

Independent Lead Director

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that if the Chairman is an employee director, then the Board may select a Lead Director from among the independent directors based on the recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee. The Company is led by David P. Yeager, who has served as in the dual roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since 2008, having served as Chief Executive Officer since 1995. The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Yeager's service as both Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer is in the best interest of our Company and its stockholders because this leadership structure promotes a unified vision for our Company, strengthens the ability of the CEO to develop and implement strategic initiatives and facilitates our Board's efficient and effective functioning. Recognizing the importance of having a strong independent board leadership structure to ensure accountability, Mr. McNitt has been designated by the Board as our Lead Director. The Board believes having a Lead Director is a valuable addition to our Board structure and facilitates the effective performance of the Board in its role providing governance and independent oversight

Committee Structure; Annual Self-Evaluations and Board Succession Planning

The Board of Directors believes that it and its three standing Board Committees provide an appropriate framework for overseeing the Company's management and operations and strike a sound balance with appropriate oversight. The Board and each standing committee annually perform self-evaluations using a process approved by the Nominating and Governance Committee. In addition, directors are asked to provide candid feedback on individual Board members to the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee or the Chairman of the Board, who then meet to discuss individual director performance and succession considerations and any necessary follow-up actions. The Board is collegial and all Board members are well engaged in their responsibilities. All Board members express their views and are open to the opinions expressed by other directors.

Regularly Scheduled Independent Director Sessions

The Company's non-management directors regularly meet in executive session, typically in conjunction with Board meetings. Mr. McNitt, as Lead Director, presides over all executive sessions of the non-management independent directors.

Annual CEO Performance Evaluations

Each year, the Compensation Committee meets to evaluate the Chief Executive Officer's performance prior to making compensation decisions relative to the CEO. All independent directors, including the Lead Director, are invited to provide input into this discussion.

What is the Board's role in risk oversight?

The Board of Directors, as a whole and at the committee level, is ultimately responsible for overseeing risk management at the Company. The Board has delegated certain of its risk oversight responsibilities to its committees, as described below. Each committee regularly reports to the Board regarding its risk management activities.

- The Board has delegated to the Compensation Committee responsibility for oversight of risks relating to human capital matters, including our employee compensation plans, policies, and programs.
- The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee various risk management responsibilities related to the financial, internal control, and litigation risks of the Company. The Board has also charged the Audit Committee with the responsibility for undertaking an annual comprehensive risk review, which includes a review of the steps taken by the Company to mitigate key risks identified by management. Any issues that arise from this discussion are then reviewed with the entire Board as necessary.

• The Board has delegated to the Nominating and Governance Committee oversight of managing the risks related to succession planning

The risk oversight function is also supported by our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, whose industry leadership, tenure and experience provide a deep understanding of the risks that the Company faces. Collectively, these processes are intended to provide the Board of Directors as a whole with an in-depth understanding of risks faced by the Company. The Board of Directors believes that this division of risk management responsibilities among the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, who has an integral role in our day-to-day risk management processes, together with the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee, the Nominating and Governance Committee and an experienced senior management team, effectively addresses the material risks facing Hub Group. Our Board further believes that our leadership structure, described above, supports the risk oversight function of the Board as it allows our independent directors, through the three fully independent Board committees and in executive sessions of independent directors, to exercise effective oversight of management's actions in identifying risks and implementing effective risk management policies and controls.

What functions are performed by the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Governance Committees?

The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Nominating and Governance Committee, each with a Board-adopted written charter available on the "Investors—Corporate Governance" section of our website located at www.hubgroup.com. Current information regarding these committees is set forth below. In addition to the functions outlined below, each such committee performs an annual self-evaluation and periodically reviews and reassesses its charter.

Name of Committee and Members	Committee Functions
AUDIT	
Mr. McNitt (Chair) Ms. Boosalis Mr. Kenny Mr. Reaves Ms. Ross Mr. Slark Mr. Ward	 Selects the independent auditor Annually evaluates the independent auditor's qualifications, performance, and independence, as well as the lead audit partner; periodically considers the advisability of audit firm rotation; discusses the nature, scope and rigor of the audit process; and reviews the annual report on the independent auditor's internal quality control procedures and any material issues raised by its most recent review of internal quality controls Pre-approves audit engagement fees and terms and all permitted non-audit services and fees, and discusses the audit scope and any audit problems or difficulties Discusses the annual audited and quarterly unaudited financial statements with management and the independent auditor Reviews with management and auditors the quality and adequacy of our internal control over financial reporting and establishes procedures for receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting or internal controls Discusses the types of information to be disclosed in earnings press releases Discusses policies governing the process by which risk assessment and risk management are undertaken Reviews internal audit activities, projects and budget Discusses with our General Counsel legal matters having an impact on financial statements
	Furnishes the committee report required in our proxy statement

Name of Committee and Members	Committee Functions
COMPENSATION	
Mr. Kenny (Chair) Ms. Boosalis Mr. McNitt Mr. Reaves Ms. Ross Mr. Slark Mr. Ward	 Reviews and approves corporate goals and objectives relevant to CEO compensation Determines executive officer compensation (including CEO compensation) and recommends Board compensation for Board approval Oversees overall compensation philosophy and principles Establishes short-term and long-term incentive compensation programs for senior officers Oversees stock ownership guidelines and holding requirements for Board members and senior officers Reviews and discusses disclosure regarding executive compensation, including Compensation Discussion and Analysis and compensation tables (in addition to preparing the report on executive compensation for our proxy statement) Selects and determines fees and scope of work of its compensation consultant Oversees and evaluates the independence of its compensation consultant and other advisors
NOMINATING AND GOVERNANCE	
Mr. Reaves (Chair) Ms. Boosalis Mr. Kenny Mr. McNitt Ms. Ross Mr. Slark Mr. Ward	 Develops and recommends criteria for selecting new directors Identifies, screens and recommends to our Board individuals qualified to serve on our Board Recommends Board committee structure and membership, including the recommendation of a lead director Assists the Board with succession planning Develops, recommends and annually assesses Corporate Governance Guidelines and corporate governance practices and makes recommendations for changes to the Board Oversees the process governing annual Board, committee and director evaluations

Does Hub Group have an audit committee financial expert serving on its Audit Committee?

Yes. Our Board has determined that Mr. McNitt is an "audit committee financial expert" as that term is defined in the regulations promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"). Additionally, the Board has determined that all members of the Audit Committee are able to read and understand fundamental financial statements within the meaning of Nasdaq's Audit Committee requirements. The SEC has determined that designation as an audit committee financial expert will not cause a person to be deemed to be an "expert" for any purpose.

How often did the Board and its committees meet in 2020?

During 2020, our Board, Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee met four, nine, two and one times, respectively. During 2020, each incumbent director attended at least 75% of the total of all meetings of the Board and the committees on which he or she served during the period for which he or she was a director and a member of each applicable committee.

What is Hub Group's policy regarding Board member attendance at the Annual Meeting?

The Company encourages each member of the Board of Directors to attend each Annual Meeting of stockholders unless attendance is not feasible due to unavoidable circumstances. This year, because we are again holding a virtual Annual Meeting, no directors will be present in person but are encouraged to access the virtual Annual Meeting. All persons serving as Board members at the time accessed the Company's 2020 virtual annual meeting of stockholders.

Does Hub Group have a management succession plan?

Yes. Our Board of Directors ensures that a formalized process governs long-term management development and succession. Our Board formally reviews our management succession plan at least annually. Our comprehensive program encompasses not only our CEO but also other executive officers. The program focuses on key succession elements, including identification of potential successors for positions when it has been determined that internal succession is appropriate, together with an assessment of each potential successor's level of readiness. With respect to CEO succession planning, our long-term business strategy is also considered. In addition, we maintain and review with the Board periodically a confidential procedure for the timely and efficient transfer of the CEO's responsibilities in the event of an emergency or his sudden incapacitation or departure.

Are there share ownership guidelines and holding requirements for Board members and senior officers?

Yes. Details of our share ownership guidelines and holding requirements for Board members and senior officers are included in the Hub Group, Inc. Stock Ownership Guidelines. See "Director Compensation" and "Executive Compensation – Compensation Discussion and Analysis—Stock Ownership Guidelines" for more information on such ownership guidelines and holding requirements. Administrative details pertaining to these matters are established by the Compensation Committee.

Does the Company have a policy regarding hedging?

Yes – our policy prohibits Board members and executive officers from engaging in hedging transactions involving Hub Group securities, including forward sale or purchase contracts, equity swaps, collars or exchange funds. We view such transactions as speculative in nature and, therefore, creating the appearance that the transaction is based on non-public information.

How can I communicate with the Board of Directors?

Stockholders may communicate directly with the Board of Directors. All communications should be directed to the Company's Corporate Secretary at the address set forth in this Proxy Statement and should prominently indicate on the outside of the envelope that it is intended for the Board of Directors or for non-management directors. Each stockholder communication intended for the Board of Directors and received by the Corporate Secretary which is not otherwise commercial in nature will be forwarded to the specified party following its clearance through normal security procedures.

Where can I find more information about Hub Group's corporate governance practices?

Our governance-related information is posted on www.hubgroup.com under "Investor Information—Corporate Governance," including our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, Amended and Restated Bylaws, Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the charter of each of the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee, and the Nominating and Governance Committee, and the name(s) of the person(s) chosen to lead the executive sessions of the non-management directors and, if different, of the independent directors. This information is also available in print to any stockholder who sends a written request to: Investor Relations, Hub Group, Inc. 2000 Clearwater Drive, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table and text summarizes the compensation earned by or paid to each person who served as a non-employee member of our Board of Directors during all or any part of 2020. Mr. David P. Yeager was not separately compensated for his service on the Board, and his executive compensation is discussed under "Executive Compensation" below. In addition, we reimburse directors for certain fees and expenses incurred in connection with continuing education seminars and for travel and expenses related to Hub Group business. We have omitted the columns pertaining to "Option Awards", "Non-equity Incentive Plan Compensation", "Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings" and "All Other Compensation" because they are inapplicable.

Name	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$)	Stock Awards (\$) ⁽²⁾	Total (\$)
M. Boosalis	\$100,000 ⁽¹⁾	\$200,039	\$300,039
J. Kenny	\$100,000	\$200,039	\$300,039
P. McNitt	\$100,000	\$200,039	\$300,039
C. Reaves	\$100,000	\$200,039	\$300,039
J. Ross	\$ 66,667	\$150,016	\$216,683
M. Slark	\$100,000	\$200,039	\$300,039
J. Ward	\$100,000	\$200,039	\$300,039

⁽¹⁾ Ms. Boosalis deferred \$50,000 of her fees under the Company's nonqualified deferred compensation plan (the "DCP").

Directors who are not our employees and served on our Board of Directors for an entire year receive an annual cash retainer of \$100,000 (payable in quarterly installments) plus a grant of shares of restricted Class A Common Stock with a targeted value on the date of grant of \$200,000. Ms. Ross's compensation was pro-rated to reflect her appointment in May 2020. The forms and amounts of director compensation outlined above were recommended by the Compensation Committee, and approved by the Board, after taking into account market data and recommendations of the Committee's compensation consultant.

To directly align the interests of our non-employee directors with the interests of the stockholders, our Board has adopted stock ownership guidelines that require each non-employee director to maintain a minimum ownership interest in the Company. The current ownership guideline requires that a director acquire and maintain shares with a value of at least three times his or her annual cash retainer within five years of election to the Board. Until reaching the ownership target, non-employee directors must retain a minimum of 25% of the stock granted to them in any one year. As of December 31, 2020, all directors are in compliance with these ownership guidelines.

⁽²⁾ Represents the aggregate grant date fair value of restricted stock awards in 2020 in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. Information about the assumptions made in the valuation of these awards is included in Note 14 of the annual consolidated financial statements in our 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on February 26, 2021. As of December 31, 2020, each of the persons listed in the table above had the following number of shares of restricted Class A common stock that were not vested: Ms. Boosalis and Messrs. Kenny, Slark, Reaves, McNitt and Ward (3,811); Ms. Ross (3,475).

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Is Hub Group subject to the Nasdaq governance rules regarding director independence?

The Board of Directors has determined that the Company is a "controlled company" as that term is defined by Nasdaq since the members of the Yeager family, pursuant to their ownership of Class A and all Class B Common Stock, control approximately 62.7% of the voting power of the Company as of March 29, 2021. Under Nasdaq rules, a company of which more than 50% of the voting power is held by an individual, group or another company is a "controlled company" and may elect not to comply with certain Nasdaq corporate governance standards, including:

- the requirement our Board include a majority of independent directors;
- the requirements that we have a compensation committee of independent directors; and
- the requirement that director nominees be selected by either majority of a company's independent directors or by a committee composed entirely of independent directors.

We are, however, subject to the Nasdaq and SEC rules that require full independence of our Audit Committee as well as the requirement for regular executive sessions by the independent directors. As a result, our Audit Committee is entirely comprised of independent directors.

Despite this exemption, as a matter of good governance, we have determined that a substantial majority of our directors should satisfy the independence requirements set forth in Nasdaq's listing standards and that our Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee also should consist solely of independent directors. The Nasdaq listing standards define specific relationships that disqualify directors from being independent and further require that the Board affirmatively determine that a director has no material relationship with Hub Group in order to be considered "independent." The SEC's rules and Nasdaq's listing standards contain separate definitions of independence for members of audit committees and compensation committees, respectively.

How does the Board of Directors determine director independence?

The Board of Directors determines the independence of each director and director nominee in accordance with the elements of independence set forth in the Nasdaq listing standards and SEC rules. The Board first considers whether any director or nominee has a relationship covered by the Nasdaq listing standards that would prohibit an independence finding for Board or committee purposes. Any director who has a material relationship with Hub Group or its management is not considered to be independent. A copy of our existing guidelines for determining director independence, included in our Corporate Governance Guidelines, is available on the Investors – Corporate Governance page of our Company's website, www.hubgroup.com.

Are all of the directors and nominees independent?

Our CEO, David P. Yeager, is our only non-independent director. Our Board has affirmatively determined that seven of our eight director nominees, namely Ms. Boosalis, Ms. Ross and Messrs. Kenny, McNitt, Reaves, Slark and Ward, are independent under Nasdaq listing standards. Our Board has made a determination as to each independent director that no relationship exists which, in the opinion of the Board, would interfere with the exercise of the director's independent judgment in carrying out his or her responsibilities as a director. In making these determinations, our Board reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and the Company regarding each director's business and personal activities as they may relate to the Company, its management and/or its independent registered public accounting firm. The Board also has determined that each person who currently serves or who served in 2020 on the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee, and the Nominating and Governance Committee meets or met, as applicable, the Nasdaq independence requirements for membership on those committees and, as to the Audit Committee, SEC rules. In reaching the determination that Mr. Slark is independent, the Board considered that Mr. Slark's son, David Slark, has been employed by the Company since 2017 and currently serves as Vice President, Driver Experience, a non-executive officer position, as described in more detail under "Transactions with Management and Others." Mr. Slark, although a member of the Compensation Committee which approves decisions pertaining to his son's compensation, does not participate in discussions that involve his son's compensation or in his performance evaluations. David Slark's cash compensation and equity awards also are approved by the Audit Committee (again with Mr. Slark not participating) pursuant to our related-party transactions approval policy.

TRANSACTIONS WITH MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS

Does the Board of Directors have a related-party transactions approval policy?

Yes. Our Related Person Transaction Policy governs the review, approval and ratification of transactions involving the Company and related persons. Related persons include our executive officers, directors, director nominees, 5% or greater stockholders and immediate family members of such persons, and entities in which one of these persons has a direct or indirect material interest. Under this policy, prior to entering into any related-person transaction, the Company's General Counsel is to be notified of the facts and circumstances of the proposed transaction, including: (i) the related person's relationship to the Company and interest in the transaction; (ii) the material facts of the proposed transaction, including the proposed aggregate value of such transaction or, in the case of indebtedness, the amount of principal that would be involved; (iii) the benefits to the Company of the proposed transaction; (iv) if applicable, the availability of other sources of comparable products or services; and (v) an assessment of whether the proposed transaction is on terms that are comparable to the terms available to an unrelated third party or to employees generally.

The General Counsel then assesses whether the proposed transaction is a related person transaction for purposes of the policy and SEC rules. If the General Counsel determines that the proposed transaction is a related person transaction for such purposes, the proposed transaction is then submitted to the Audit Committee for its consideration; except for related parties who are employees, which process is described below. The Audit Committee considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available, including (if applicable) but not limited to: (i) the benefits to the Company; (ii) the impact on a director's independence, in the event a person involved with, or connected to, the proposed transaction is a director; (iii) the availability of other sources for comparable products or services; (iv) the terms of the transaction; and (v) the terms available to unrelated third parties or to employees generally. No member of the Audit Committee participates in any review, consideration or approval of any related person transaction with respect to which such member or any of his immediate family members is the related person. The Audit Committee then makes a recommendation to the Board. The Board approves only those proposed transactions that are in, or are not inconsistent with, the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, as determined by the Board. If the Company becomes aware of a related person transaction that has not been previously approved or ratified by the Board or the Audit Committee, a similar process is undertaken by the Board and the Audit Committee to determine if the existing transaction should continue or be terminated and/or if any disciplinary action is appropriate. The General Counsel may also develop, implement and maintain from time to time certain administrative procedures to ensure the effectiveness of this policy. A copy of our Related Person Transaction Policy is available on the Investors - Corporate Governance page of our website, www.hubgroup.com.

What related-party transactions existed in 2020 or are planned for 2021?

There were no related person transactions in 2020 except as follows: In accordance with the Company's Related Person Transaction Policy, all compensation paid to related party employees is reviewed and approved by the Compensation Committee. Phillip D. Yeager, Matthew Yeager and Laura Grusecki, the children of David P. Yeager, serve as President and Chief Operating Officer, Executive Vice President – Procurement and Assistant Vice President, Human Resources, respectively. Jude Troppoli, the brother-in-law of David P. Yeager, serves as Director of Documentation. John C. Vesco, the husband of Vava R. Dimond, Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer, served as our Executive Vice President, President of Hub Group Trucking until March 27, 2020. David Slark, the son of Martin Slark, serves as Vice President, Driver Experience. Each of Ms. Grusecki and Ms. Dimond and Messrs. Phillip D. Yeager, Matthew Yeager, Troppoli and Slark earned in excess of \$120,000 in salary and bonuses for 2020. Each individual's compensation is comparable to other employees with equivalent qualifications, experience and responsibilities at the Company. Mr. Vesco, pursuant to his negotiated separation arrangement, received severance payments in excess of \$120,000 from the Company during the course of 2020. All compensation for the foregoing individuals was approved by our Compensation Committee, with Mr. Martin Slark not participating in the discussions with respect to the compensation of his son, David Slark.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This section provides details of compensation during 2020 for our "Named Executive Officers": David P. Yeager (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Phillip D. Yeager (President and Chief Operating Officer), Terri A. Pizzuto (Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer until she stepped down from such position on June 30, 2020), Geoffrey F. DeMartino (Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since his appointment on July 1, 2020), Vava R. Dimond (Executive Vice President, Chief Information Officer), and Douglas G. Beck (Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary).

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Overview of Compensation Program

Our Compensation Committee has the responsibility for determining the compensation that is paid or awarded to our Company's executive officers (for purposes of this proxy statement, the term "executive officer" means the senior leadership of the Company, including those officers subject to the reporting and liability provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 ("Section 16 Officers") and Named Executive Officers). Our Compensation Committee consists of the seven current independent members of the Board. Our Compensation Committee strives to ensure that the total compensation paid to our executive officers is fair, reasonable, competitive and drives behavior that increases stockholder value over the long term.

Compensation Best Practices

We strive to align our executives' interests with those of our stockholders and to follow sound corporate governance practices. We believe our compensation program strikes the appropriate balance between using responsible pay practices and appropriately incentivizing our executives to create value for our stockholders. This balance is evidenced by the following:

Compensation Practice	Hub Group Policy
Pay for performance	A meaningful part of executive compensation is performance based, including our annual cash incentive, which is based on diluted earnings per share ("EPS"), and our long-term incentive, which is based on the Company's earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") as a percentage of gross margin. Annual restricted stock grants to executive officers are fifty percent performance-based and fifty percent time-based.
Robust stock ownership guidelines and holding requirements	Our stock ownership guidelines and holding requirements create further alignment with stockholders' long-term interests. See "Director Compensation" and "Executive Compensation – Compensation Discussion and Analysis— Stock Ownership Guidelines".
No employment agreements	We have no employment, severance or golden parachute agreements with any of our Named Executive Officers and therefore, no excise tax gross-ups.
Multi-year vesting period for restricted stock awards	Time-based restricted stock awards and performance-based restricted stock awards generally have a 5- and 3-year vesting period, respectively.
No hedging Hub Group securities	Our policy prohibits executive officers and directors from engaging in hedging transactions involving our stock. See "Corporate Governance – Does the Company Have a Policy Regarding Hedging?".
Tax gross-ups	We do not provide tax gross-up payments except in connection with annual physicals that the Named Executive Officers may receive.
No repricing underwater stock options without stockholder approval	Our equity incentive plan prohibits repricing underwater stock options, reducing the exercise price of stock options or replacing awards with cash or another award type, without stockholder approval.
Annual compensation risk assessment	At least annually, our Compensation Committee assesses the risk of our compensation program.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Our Company's compensation philosophy is designed to link executive performance to long-term stockholder value, connect pay with individual performance, maintain a compensation system that is competitive with industry standards and attract and retain outstanding executives. We seek to incentivize our executives through both short-term and long-term awards, with a goal of rewarding superior Company performance. Our ultimate objective is to improve stockholder value.

Our Compensation Committee evaluates both performance and compensation to ensure that our Company maintains its ability to attract and retain superior employees in key positions and that compensation provided to key employees remains competitive relative to the compensation paid to similarly situated executives of our peer companies. To that end, our Compensation Committee believes executive compensation packages provided to our executives should include both cash and stock-based compensation that reward performance as measured against pre-established goals.

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions

Our Compensation Committee, with input and recommendations from our Chief Executive Officer and our President, makes all compensation decisions for the executive officers and approves, if deemed appropriate, recommendations of equity awards to all executive officers of the Company. However, our Chief Executive Officer and our President do not play any role in the Compensation Committee's determination of their own compensation. Our Chief Executive Officer and our President annually review the performance of the executive officers. The conclusions reached and recommendations based on these reviews, including salary adjustments and annual stock and cash award amounts, are presented to the Compensation Committee. Our Compensation Committee can exercise its discretion in modifying any recommended adjustments of stock or cash awards to executives.

Setting Executive Compensation

Based on the foregoing objectives, our Compensation Committee has structured the Company's annual and long-term incentive-based cash and non-cash executive compensation to motivate executives to achieve the business goals set by the Company and reward the executives for achieving such goals.

Compensation Consultant. To help the Company achieve its compensation objectives, our Compensation Committee engaged Korn Ferry Hay Group ("Korn Ferry") as its independent compensation consultant for 2020. Korn Ferry (or its predecessor, Hay Group) has been the compensation consultant to the Compensation Committee since 2004. The consultant's role is to advise our Compensation Committee on all executive compensation matters. The Compensation Committee asked the consultant to provide relevant market data and evaluate the Company's total compensation system relative to the compensation systems employed by comparable companies in the transportation industry and the overall U.S. industrial market. The consultant provides an additional measure of assurance that the Company's executive compensation program is a reasonable and appropriate means to achieve our objectives. In 2020, Korn Ferry also was retained to perform an executive search, for which it received a fee of \$98,980 in the aggregate.

Market Benchmarking. A benchmark group of publicly-traded companies in the transportation industry is chosen based on comparable revenue, market capitalization and number of employees. The peer group is used annually by our Compensation Committee to ensure that Hub Group's compensation programs offer competitive total compensation opportunities and reflect best practices in compensation plan design. For 2020, the companies comprising the "Compensation Peer Group" were:

Company	Ticker Symbol	Annual Sales (\$MM) ⁽¹⁾	Market Value of Equity (\$MM) ⁽²⁾	Number of Employees ⁽¹⁾
Forward Air, Inc.	FWRD	1,269.6	2,413.5	3,774
ArcBest Corporation	ARCB	2,940.2	1.593.2	13,000
J.B. Hunt Transportation Services, Inc.	JBHT	9,637.0	15,791.3	29,070
Knight - Swift Transportation Holdings, Inc.	KNX	4,673.9	7,330.0	22,900
Landstar System, Inc.	LSTR	4,132.9	6,249.7	1,320
Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc.	ODFL	4,015,1	25,810.4	19,779
Roadrunner Transportation Systems, Inc.	RRTS	505.7	114.4	3,600
Ryder System, Inc.	R	8,420.1	3,756.7	39,000
Saia, Inc.	SAIA	1,822.4	5,526.9	10,600
Schneider National, Inc.	SNDR	4,552.8	1,970.3	15,225
Universal Logistics Holdings, Inc.	ULH	1,511.9	649.8	2,174
Werner Enterprises, Inc.	WERN	2,372.2	3.016.2	12,292
YRC Worldwide Inc.	YELL	4,513.7	324.5	30,000
75th Percentile	_	\$4,552.8	\$ 6,249.7	22,900
Median	_	\$4,015.1	\$ 3,016.2	13,000
25th Percentile	_	\$1,822.4	\$ 1,593.2	3774
Hub Group, Inc.	HUBG	3,495.6	1,968.9	5,000
Hub Percentile Rank	_	46%	33%	26%

⁽¹⁾ Based on each company's most recent 10-K filing.

In addition, information on annual base salary increases and compensation data for the U.S. general industrial markets is provided by our Compensation Committee's independent compensation consultant.

The Company's Chief Executive Officer and its President develop pay recommendations for the Company's executives based on (i) the aforementioned market data, (ii) each executive's individual performance and functional responsibilities as determined by the Chief Executive Officer and the President and (iii) Company performance, both financial and non-financial. Our Compensation Committee, with the advice of its independent compensation consultant, reviews and, if appropriate, approves these pay recommendations. Our Compensation Committee also sets the base salary and incentive opportunities for the Company's Chief Executive Officer based on (i) the aforementioned market data, (ii) the Chief Executive Officer's individual performance and responsibilities and (iii) Company performance, both financial and non-financial.

Our Compensation Committee generally seeks to set the base salary for executive officers at a competitive level compared to similarly situated executives according to survey data from the Korn Ferry Executive Compensation Report (the "Korn Ferry survey"). Our Compensation Committee also considers, on a secondary basis, the executive compensation disclosure included in the proxy statements of the companies comprising the Compensation Peer Group. Variations to this objective do occur as dictated by the experience level of the individual, personal performance and market factors.

There is no pre-established policy or target for the allocation between either cash and non-cash or short-term and long-term incentive compensation. Rather, our Compensation Committee reviews information provided by our compensation consultant to determine the appropriate level and mix of incentive compensation. Pay for such incentive compensation is awarded as a result of the performance of the Company or the individual, depending on the type of award, compared to pre-established goals.

⁽²⁾ As of March 1, 2021 share price.

2020 Advisory vote on Executive Compensation

Hub Group's stockholders overwhelmingly approved the Company's 2020 and 2019 compensation for named executive officers with over 97% approval each year.

Our Compensation Committee reviewed the results of the 2020 stockholder advisory vote on Named Executive Officer compensation and incorporated the results as one of the many factors considered in connection with the discharge of its responsibilities. Since a substantial majority of our stockholders voting at the annual meeting approved the compensation program described in our 2020 Proxy Statement, the Compensation Committee did not implement changes to our executive compensation program as a direct result of the stockholders' advisory vote. Our Compensation Committee will continue to review and consider the results of the stockholder advisory vote on Named Executive Officer compensation and may make changes based on that review.

2020 Executive Compensation Components

The Company's executive compensation program has three main components--base salary, annual incentives, and long-term incentives. Base salary and annual incentives are primarily designed to reward current and past performance. Long-term incentives are primarily designed to provide strong incentives for long-term future Company growth.

Base Salary. To attract and retain qualified executives, base salary is provided to our executive officers. The base salary is determined based on position and responsibility using competitive criteria. During its review of base salaries for the executives, our Compensation Committee primarily considers (i) market data provided by our outside consultants, (ii) an internal review of the executive's compensation, both individually and relative to other officers, and (iii) individual performance of the executive. Salary levels are typically reviewed annually as part of our annual performance review process as well as upon a promotion or other change in job responsibilities. Increases are based on increases in the cost of living, individual performance and market data. For 2020, the Compensation Committee provided salary increases of -0-% for David P. Yeager, 10.0% for Phillip D. Yeager, 3.0% for Ms. Dimond, and 3.0% for Mr. Beck. Geoffrey F. DeMartino's annual base salary was adjusted from \$401,747 to \$460,000 upon his promotion to Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer effective July 1, 2020.

Annual Cash Incentive. The Company's annual cash incentive recognizes and rewards executives for taking actions that build the value of the Company and generate competitive total returns for stockholders. Our annual cash incentive is determined with the assistance of the Korn Ferry survey referred to above. For 2020, David P. Yeager's target award was 125% of his annual base salary, Phillip D. Yeager's target award was 80% of his annual base salary, Ms. Dimond and Mr. Beck's target award was 70% of their annual base salary and Mr. DeMartino's target award was 60% of his annual base salary. This incentive is based solely on earnings per share ("EPS") for our Chief Executive Officer and our President. For our other executive officers, this incentive is based on a combination of EPS (80%) and on individual performance compared against certain pre-determined personal goals (20%). The personal goals vary by officer. For 2020, the personal goals for officers responsible for each of our service lines were generally tied to specific financial metrics for the service line managed by the executive. For our other executives, the personal goals were generally tied to specific objectives within their area of responsibility. The personal goals are generally set at a level that is believed to be achievable with superior personal performance.

Each year, our Compensation Committee sets an EPS target, which may take into account certain items deemed by the Compensation Committee to be unusual or non-operating in nature and the impact of any share repurchase activity. Once the year is completed, Hub Group's earnings per share is compared against the EPS target. If the EPS target is met, we pay the EPS portion of the award. If the EPS target is not met, we either do not pay any cash incentive related to EPS or pay a reduced incentive based on a sliding scale. Similarly, our executives can earn, also on a sliding scale, up to 200% of their EPS target incentive if we substantially exceed our EPS target. For 2020, the Compensation Committee set the threshold EPS target at \$3.39 to receive any portion of the EPS cash incentive, the full value EPS target at \$3.73 and the maximum value EPS target at \$4.04. Because the Company's EPS for 2020 was significantly impacted by the disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, our executives received no payout on their EPS incentive in 2020.

Ms. Dimond's target incentive related to personal goals was \$64,890. Mr. DeMartino's target incentive related to personal goals was \$103,134. Mr. Beck's target incentive related to personal goals was \$62,237.

Ms. Pizzuto's target incentive related to personal goals was \$77,983. Because the Company's business for 2020 was significantly impacted by the disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, our executives received no payout on their personal goals incentive in 2020. All cash compensation is approved by our Compensation Committee before it is paid to our executive officers. In addition to the cash compensation described above, the Compensation Committee also delegated to our CEO the ability to grant up to \$1,000,000 in aggregate cash awards to high performing employees who are not executive officers. In addition to the cash compensation described above, the Compensation Committee also delegated to our CEO the ability to grant up to \$1,000,000 in aggregate cash awards to high performing employees who are not executive officers. During 2020, under this authority, our CEO made cash awards totaling \$885,000 to 136 employees.

Long-Term Equity Incentives. The Company's Long-Term Equity Incentive ("LTI") Program serves to reward executive performance that successfully executes the Company's long-term business strategy and builds stockholder value. The LTI Program allows awards of options and stock appreciation rights, time and performance based restricted stock and performance units. The LTI Program encourages participants to focus on long-term Company performance and provides an opportunity for executive officers and certain designated key employees to increase their ownership stake in the Company through grants of the Company's Class A Common Stock. The Company adopted the Hub Group, Inc. 2017 Long-Term Incentive Plan in connection with its LTI Program.

The Company has historically made an annual grant of restricted stock to its executive officers. Our Compensation Committee reviews management's recommendation and approves restricted stock awards for each Section 16 Officer. Our restricted stock grants for Section 16 Officers typically vest over three to five years and, beginning in 2018, consisted of a performance-based restricted stock grant in addition to time-based restricted stock grant. That program of restricted stock grants continued in 2020 (the "2020 LTI Awards") when the Compensation Committee granted the restricted awards to executives in January 2020.

For the 2020 LTI Awards, the Compensation Committee first established the long-term incentive target opportunity for each executive in the LTI Program. The target value was a target number of restricted shares for the individual awards. The 2020 LTI Awards consisted of 50% performance-based restricted stock cliff vesting upon the third anniversary of the grant date and 50% time-based restricted stock vesting ratably over a five-year period if the executive remains continuously employed with the Company for five years following the grant date. There are no other metrics tied to vesting of these time-based awards. The Compensation Committee has the discretion to accelerate the vesting of these awards.

For all participants, vesting of the performance-based 2020 LTI Awards were tied to achievement of the Company's earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") as a percentage of gross margin for the three-year period ending December 31, 2022.

The Compensation Committee set a threshold, target, and maximum level for this performance measure under each of the 2020 LTI Awards. The levels were designed such that the underlying performance-based shares will not vest if we do not at least achieve the minimum level (threshold) of performance. Vesting at target level requires us to fully meet or slightly exceed our performance expectations and full vesting at the maximum level requires a high level of performance. Forfeiture or grant of additional shares at performance levels between threshold, target and maximum is determined based on straight-line interpolation for these shares.

The following table presents the possible payouts for shares of performance-based restricted stock at different levels of performance:

	of Threshold	Achievement of	of Maximum
2020 Performance Metric	Level	Target Level	Level
EBITDA as a percent of gross margin: Total Payout	20%	100%	200%

Achierement

The performance shares will vest and be released to the awardee if and only to the extent the Compensation Committee certifies that the performance levels for the awards have been satisfied.

There are significant assumptions built into the achievement levels described above for the 2020 LTI Awards. The Compensation Committee retains discretion to adjust the achievement levels when market conditions or other events (such as acquisitions or divestitures) occur during the performance period that were not anticipated in the design of the awards at grant.

In November 2019, our Compensation Committee delegated to our Chief Executive Officer the ability to grant up to 100,000 shares of time-based restricted stock in the aggregate to non-executive officers during 2020. Our Chief Executive Officer grants this stock from time to time to new hires or in connection with a promotion or outstanding performance by current employees. During 2020, under this authority, our CEO awarded a total of 38,026 shares (valued, in the aggregate, at \$1,907,097) to 65 employees. Further, in November 2020, our Compensation Committee delegated to our Chief Executive Officer the ability to grant up to an additional 75,000 shares of time-based restricted stock to non-executive employees between the authorization date and December 31, 2021. This authorization was made in anticipation of our acquisition of NonstopDelivery, LLC ("NSD") in December 2020 and our Chief Executive Officer awarded a total of 74,929 shares (valued, in the aggregate, at \$4,000,000) to employees of NSD in connection with such acquisition.

The Company has not granted any stock options since 2003.

Vesting of 2018-2020 LTI Awards. In 2018, certain senior Company executives received grants of performance-based restricted stock for the three-year performance period ending on December 31, 2020, using EBITDA as a percentage of gross margin as the performance metric.

The threshold, target, maximum and actual results for the 2018-2020 performance period are set forth in the table below.

EBITDA as a % of Gross Margin	Payout Level
37.9% or less	0%
38.0%-38.2%	50%
38.3%-38.6%	66%
38.7%-38.9%	83%
39.0%-40.2%	100%
40.3%-41.6%	133%
41.7%-42.9%	166%
43% or greater	200%

The Company's actual results for EBITDA as a percent of gross margin for 2018-2020 performance share awards exceeded 43%, which resulted in a payout equal to 200%. The resulting share amounts earned by our Named Executive Officers are set forth in the table below. Mr. DeMartino became a Named Executive Officer with the Company in 2020 and did not receive a performance share award for the 2018-2020 performance period.

Named Executive Officer	Performance-Based Restricted Stock Earned (#)
David P. Yeager	40,000
Phillip D. Yeager	12,000
Vava R. Dimond	14,000
Douglas G. Beck	14,000
Terri Pizzuto	18,000

Perquisites and Other Compensation

The Company provides executive officers with perquisites and other personal benefits that the Company and our Compensation Committee believe are reasonable and consistent with its overall compensation program to better enable the Company to attract and retain superior employees for key positions. Our Compensation Committee periodically reviews the levels of perquisites and other personal benefits provided to named executive officers.

All of our named executive officers participated in our 401(k) plan and received matching funds up to the federally allowed maximum match. We maintain \$50,000 of life insurance on all of our executive officers. The Company also maintains the DCP and provides a matching contribution to participants. The Company makes available to its executive officers an annual physical at a local hospital, for which the Company pays the taxes associated with this benefit. The Company allows personal use of its fractional airplane interests by certain executive officers. Personal use of our aircraft interests requires approval by the Chief Executive Officer. Our executives must reimburse the Company for their personal use of our aircraft interests at the Standard Industry Fare Level plus either 20% or 30% depending on the aircraft.

Retirement and Other Benefits

Pension Benefits

We do not provide pension arrangements or subsidized post-retirement health coverage for our executives or employees.

Non-qualified Deferred Compensation

Our executive officers, in addition to certain other key managerial employees, are entitled to participate in the DCP. Pursuant to this plan, eligible employees can defer certain compensation on a pre-tax basis. The DCP is discussed in further detail below under the heading "2020 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation."

Other Post-Employment Payments

All of our executive officers are employees-at-will and as such do not have employment contracts with us. Certain payments will be made upon a termination or change of control. These payments are discussed in further detail below under the heading "Potential Payouts upon Termination or Change of Control" Below.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

To directly align the interests of executive officers with the interests of the stockholders, our Board adopted a policy that requires each executive officer to acquire and maintain a minimum ownership interest in the Company. Each executive officer, other than the Chief Executive Officer, must own Company stock with a value of at least two times his or her base annual salary. The Chief Executive Officer must own Company stock with a value of at least three times his base salary. Each executive officer has five years to meet this requirement. Until they do, executive officers must retain a minimum of 25% of the stock granted to them in any one year. As of December 31, 2020, all Named Executive Officers are in compliance with these guidelines.

Tax and Accounting Implications

Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), limits the Company's deduction for individual compensation over \$1 million paid in any taxable year to each of the persons that meet the definition of a covered employee under Section 162(m). For 2020, covered employees include anyone who was a covered employee for any taxable year beginning after December 31, 2016, anyone who held the position of CEO or Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") at any time during the fiscal year and the three most highly compensated employees who acted as executive officers (other than as CEO or CFO) at any time during the fiscal year.

Section 274(e) of the Code limits the Company's deduction for expenses allocated to certain personal use of its fractional airplane interests. For 2020, such expenses, less amounts reimbursed to the Company, were not deductible for federal income tax purposes.

The Compensation Committee continues to view the tax deductibility of executive compensation as one of many factors to be considered in the context of its overall compensation philosophy and therefore reserves the right to approve compensation that may not be deductible in situations it deems appropriate.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis ("CD&A") required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K and based on this review and discussion, the Compensation Committee has recommended to the Board that the CD&A be included in this Proxy Statement.

This report has been furnished by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors:

James C. Kenny, Chairman Mary Boosalis Peter B. McNitt Charles R. Reaves Jenell Ross Martin P. Slark Jonathan P. Ward

The above Compensation Committee Report does not constitute soliciting material and should not be deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any other Hub Group filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent Hub Group specifically incorporates this report by reference therein.

2020 SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth a summary of the annual, long-term and other compensation for services rendered to the Company paid or awarded during 2020, 2019 and 2018 to our Named Executive Officers. We have omitted from this table the columns for "Bonus", "Option Awards" and "Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings" because they are inapplicable.

Name and principal position	<u>Year</u>	Salary (\$) ⁽¹⁾	Stock award		Non-equity incentive plan ompensation (\$) ⁽³⁾	All other compensation (\$) ⁽⁴⁾	
David P. Yeager	2020	\$950,000	\$2,099,60) \$	0	\$119,294	\$3,168,894
Chairman and Chief	2019	\$986,538	\$1,488,00) \$	1,721,875	\$233,808	\$4,430,221
Executive Officer	2018	\$950,000	\$1,968,00) \$	1,900,000	\$261,037	\$5,079,037
Phillip D. Yeager	2020	\$544,231	\$ 839,84) \$	0	\$ 25,098	\$1,409,169
President and Chief	2019	\$474,969	\$ 446,40) \$	435,095	\$ 23,448	\$1,379,912
Operating Officer	2018	\$400,000	\$ 840,42	7 \$	529,459	\$ 20,770	\$1,790,656
Geoffrey F. DeMartino ⁽⁵⁾⁽⁶⁾ EVP, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer	2020	\$429,724	\$ 200,03	9 \$	0	\$ 22,398	\$ 652,161
Vava R. Dimond	2020	\$461,942	\$ 839,84) \$	0	\$ 28,118	\$1,329,900
EVP – Chief Information	2019	\$467,308	\$ 595,20) \$	420,525	\$ 21,948	\$1,504,981
Officer	2018	\$420,000	\$ 688,80) \$	529,200	\$ 21,790	\$1,659,790
Douglas G. Beck ⁽⁶⁾	2020	\$443,054	\$ 734,86) \$	0	\$ 21,546	\$1,199,460
EVP – General Counsel and Corporate Secretary	2019	\$448,200	\$ 520,800) \$	390,742	\$ 21,396	\$1,381,138
Terri A. Pizzuto ⁽⁵⁾	2020	\$415,896	\$ 944,820) \$	0	\$ 16,953	\$1,377,669
Former EVP, Chief	2019	\$561,600	\$ 669,60) \$	505,378	\$ 24,672	\$1,761,250
Financial Officer and Treasurer	2018	\$520,000	\$ 885,60) \$	618,800	\$ 24,514	\$2,048,914

⁽¹⁾ Each Named Executive Officer with the exception Ms. Dimond deferred under the DCP and contributed to our 401(k) Plan a portion of salary earned in each of the years for which salaries are reported above for the applicable executive. The amounts of the 2020 salary deferrals under the DCP are included in the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table.

⁽²⁾ For 2020, represents the aggregate grant date fair value of restricted stock awards calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. Certain of the awards are subject to performance conditions, and the reported value at the grant date is based upon the probable outcome of such conditions on such date. The values of the awards that are subject to performance conditions at the grant date assuming that the highest level of performance conditions will be achieved are as follows for each year required to be reported for each applicable Named Executive Officer:

Year	D. Yeager (\$)	P. Yeager (\$)	T. Pizzuto (\$)	G. DeMartino (\$)	V. Dimond (\$)	D. Beck (\$)
2020						
Time-based	\$1,049,800	\$419,920	\$472,410	\$200,039	\$419,920	\$367,430
Performance-based	\$2,099,600	\$839,840	\$944,820	\$ -0-	\$839,840	\$734,860

Information regarding the assumptions made in the valuation of these awards is set forth in Note 14 of the annual consolidated financial statements in our 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on February 26, 2021.

⁽³⁾ For 2020, represents the annual cash incentives paid to our Named Executive Officers.

(4) The following table indicates the components of "All Other Compensation" for each of our Named Executive Officers during 2020:

Name	401(k) Match	Life Insurance	DCP match	Executive Physical	Personal Aircraft Usage*
D. Yeager	\$8,550	\$48	\$28,500	\$5,245	\$76,951
P. Yeager	\$8,550	\$48	\$16,500	_	_
G. DeMartino	\$8,550	\$48	\$13,800		
V. Dimond	\$8,550	\$48	\$13,800	\$5,720	_
D. Beck	\$8,550	\$48	\$12,948		_
T. Pizzuto	\$8,550	\$48	\$ 8,355	_	

- * Personal use of our fractional airplane interests is subject to the Company's Perquisites Policy and requires approval by the Chief Executive Officer. Our executives must reimburse the Company for their personal use of our fractional aircraft interest at the Standard Industry Fare Level plus either 20% or 30% depending on the aircraft. We value the personal use of our aircraft interests as the difference between the amount paid by the executive to the Company for use of the plane and the aggregate incremental cost of using the plane. The incremental cost includes the hourly flight fee, all fuel charges, overnight fees, on-board catering, landing fees, parking fees, certain taxes and passenger ground transportation. We do not include in incremental costs the fixed costs that do not change based on personal usage, such as monthly management fees or the purchase or lease costs of our fractional interest in aircraft. Personal aircraft use by the Yeager family is reimbursed by Mr. David Yeager.
- (5) Ms. Pizzuto stepped down from her position as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, effective June 30, 2020, and Mr. DeMartino was appointed Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, effective July 1, 2020.
- (6) Mr. Beck joined the Company in 2011 but did not become a Named Executive Officer until 2019. Mr. DeMartino joined the Company in 2016, but did not become a Named Executive Officer until 2020.

2020 GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

The table below also shows information regarding equity awards made to our named executive officers during 2020. We have omitted from this table the columns for "All Other Option Awards" and "Exercise or Base Price of Option Awards" because they are inapplicable.

				Estimated future payouts under non-equity incentive plan awards		Estimated future payouts under equity incentive plan awards			All other stock awards: Number of shares of stock or	stock awards: Grant dat Number of fair value of shares of stock and	
Name	Award Type ⁽¹⁾	Grant date	Threshold (\$)	Target (\$)	Maximum (\$)	Threshold (#)	Target (#)	Maximum (#)	units (#)	awards (\$)	
D. Yeager	RSA	1/2/20	_	_	_	_	_	_	20,000(3)	\$1,049,800	
	PA	1/2/20	_	_	_	4,000	20,000	40,000	20,000 ⁽⁴⁾	\$1,049,800	
	ACI ⁽²⁾			\$1,187,500	\$2,375,000				_	_	
P. Yeager	RSA	1/2/20	_	_	_	_	_	_	8,000 ⁽³⁾	\$ 419,920	
	PA	1/2/20	_	_	_	1,600	8,000	16,000	8,000 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 419,920	
	ACI ⁽²⁾			\$ 440,000	\$ 880,000	_			_	_	
T. Pizzuto	RSA	1/2/20	_	_	_	_	_	_	9,000(3)	\$ 472,410	
	PA	1/2/20	_	_	_	1,800	9,000	18,000	9,000 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 472,410	
	ACI ⁽²⁾			\$ 194,958	\$ 350,925	_			_	_	
G. DeMartino	RSA	1/2/20	_	_	_	_	_	_	3,811 ⁽³⁾	\$ 200,039	
	PA	1/2/20	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	
	ACI ⁽²⁾			\$ 258,510	\$ 441,216	_	_		_	_	
V. Dimond	RSA	1/2/20	_	_	_	_	_	_	8,000 ⁽³⁾	\$ 419,920	
	PA	1/2/20	_	_	_	1,600	8,000	16,000	8,000 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 419,920	
	ACI ⁽²⁾		_	\$ 324,450	\$ 584,010	_				_	
D. Beck	RSA	1/2/20	_	_	_	_	_	_	7,000 ⁽³⁾	\$ 367,430	
	PA	1/2/20	_	_	_	1,400	7,000	14,000	7,000 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 367,430	
	ACI ⁽²⁾		_	\$ 311,184	\$ 560,130					_	

⁽¹⁾ Type of Awards are - Restricted Stock Award (RSA); Performance Award (PA); and Annual Cash Incentive (ACI).

Narrative Description for Summary Compensation and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Tables

As part of the annual compensation package, our Compensation Committee grants restricted Class A Common Stock to our Named Executive Officers. Generally, these awards are based on merit and vest over five years. The Company has historically made an annual grant of time-based restricted stock to its Named Executive Officers and, since 2018 performance-based restricted stock has also been part of the long-term incentive. Our Compensation Committee reviews management's recommendation and approves the restricted stock awards for each Named Executive Officer. These restricted shares are entitled to dividends to the same extent as ordinary shares, but the dividends are restricted to the same extent as the underlying security. Once the restricted stock vests, any dividends paid on that stock also vest. We do not have employment agreements with our Named Executive Officers.

⁽²⁾ Our annual cash incentive is determined with the assistance of advice from Korn Ferry. With the exception of our Chief Executive Officer and our President and Chief Operating Officer, the value of the target award is generally set at 60 - 70% of salary. This incentive is based solely on EPS for our Chief Executive Officer and our President and Chief Operating Officer. For our other Named Executive Officers, 80% of this incentive is based on EPS and 20% is based on individual performance compared against certain predetermined personal goals.

⁽³⁾ Restricted stock that vests ratably annually on the date of grant over five years.

⁽⁴⁾ Performance awards that cliff vest after 3 years. Payout is based upon a three-year average of the ratio of EBITDA as a percent of gross margin. The maximum payout of these awards would be achieved if EBITDA as a percent of gross margin meets or exceeds the 200% level metric as determined by the Compensation Committee. However, because the results of 2021 and 2022 currently are undeterminable, these awards could continue to result in payouts of between zero and the maximum amounts. Target shares denote a 100% payout; and maximum shares denote a 200% payout.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2020 FISCAL YEAR-END

The table below sets forth information regarding equity awards granted and held by our Named Executive Officers as of the end of fiscal year 2020. We have omitted from this table the columns relating to "Option Awards" because they are inapplicable.

		Stock awards					
Name	Number of shares or units of stock that have not vested (#)	Market value of shares or units of stock that have not vested ⁽¹⁾	Equity incentive plan awards: number of unearned shares, units or other rights that have not vested (#)	Equity incentive plan awards: market or payout value of unearned shares, units or other rights that have not vested ⁽¹⁾ (\$)			
D. Yeager	20,000 ⁽²⁾	\$1,140,000	20,000 ⁽³⁾	\$1,140,000			
D. Teuger	16,000 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 912,000	$20,000^{(5)}$	\$1,140,000			
	12,000 ⁽⁷⁾	\$ 684,000	20,000	Ψ1,110,000			
	16,000 ⁽⁸⁾	\$ 912,000					
	6,000 ⁽⁹⁾	\$ 342,000					
P. Yeager	8,000 ⁽²⁾	\$ 456,000	8,000 ⁽³⁾	\$ 456,000			
_	4,800 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 273,600	6,000 ⁽⁵⁾	\$ 342,000			
	3,222 ⁽⁶⁾	\$ 183,654					
	3,600 ⁽⁷⁾	\$ 205,200					
	4,000 ⁽⁸⁾	\$ 228,000					
	1,400 ⁽⁹⁾	\$ 79,800					
G. DeMartino	3,811 ⁽²⁾	\$ 217,227					
	4,301 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 245,157					
	2,439 ⁽⁷⁾	\$ 139,023					
	1,828 ⁽⁸⁾	\$ 104,196					
	2,458 ⁽¹⁰⁾	\$ 140,106					
V. Dimond	8,000 ⁽²⁾	\$ 456,000	8,000 ⁽³⁾	\$ 456,000			
	6,400 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 364,800	8,000 ⁽⁵⁾	\$ 456,000			
	4,200 ⁽⁷⁾	\$ 239,400					
	5,280 ⁽⁸⁾	\$ 300,960					
	2,640 ⁽⁹⁾	\$ 150,480	(2)				
D. Beck	7,000 ⁽²⁾	\$ 399,000	7,000 ⁽³⁾	\$ 399,000			
	5,600 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 319,200	7,000 ⁽⁵⁾	\$ 399,000			
	4,200 ⁽⁷⁾	\$ 239,400					
	5,600 ⁽⁸⁾	\$ 319,200					
To Di	2,640 ⁽⁹⁾	\$ 150,480	0.000(3)	φ. #12 000			
T. Pizzuto	$9,000^{(2)}$	\$ 513,000	$9,000^{(3)}$	\$ 513,000			
	7,200 ⁽⁴⁾	\$ 410,400	9,000 ⁽⁵⁾	\$ 513,000			
	5,400 ⁽⁷⁾	\$ 307,800					
	$7,200^{(8)}$	\$ 410,400					
	3,600 ⁽⁹⁾	\$ 205,200					

⁽¹⁾ Computed by multiplying the number of shares by \$57.00, which was the closing market price of one share of our Class A common stock on December 31, 2020 as reported by Nasdaq.

- (2) Restricted stock remaining from a grant made on January 2, 2020 that vests ratably annually on the date of grant over five years.
- (3) Performance award remaining from grant made on January 2, 2020 that vests over three years. This number assumes a 100% payout of the performance award.
- (4) Restricted stock remaining from a grant made on January 2, 2019 that vests ratably annually on the date of grant over five years.
- (5) Performance awards remaining from a grant made on January 2, 2019 that vests over three years.
- (6) Restricted stock remaining from a grant made on November 9, 2018 that vests ratably annually on the date of grant over five years.
- (7) Restricted stock remaining from a grant made on January 2, 2018 that vests ratably annually on the date of grant over five years.
- (8) Restricted stock remaining from a grant made on January 2, 2017 that vests ratably annually on the date of grant over five years.
- (9) Restricted stock remaining from a grant made on January 2, 2016 that vests ratably annually on the date of grant over five years.
- (10) Restricted stock remaining from a grant made on February 1, 2016 that vests ratably annually on the date of grant over five years.

2020 OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

The table below sets forth information regarding awards that vested for Named Executive Officers during 2020. We have omitted from this table the columns relating to "Option Awards" because they are inapplicable.

	Stock	Awards
Name	Number of Shares Acquired on Vesting ⁽¹⁾ (#)	Value Realized on Vesting ⁽²⁾ (\$)
D. Yeager	66,840	3,647,232
P. Yeager	19,276	1,050,731
T. Pizzuto	32,100	1,747,389
G. DeMartino	5,261	277,084
V. Dimond	24,284	1,314,799
D. Beck	24,244	1,319,156

⁽¹⁾ Represents the gross number of shares acquired upon vesting of restricted stock, without deduction for shares that may have been withheld to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations.

⁽²⁾ Computed by multiplying the number of shares by the closing market price of one share of our Class A common stock on the vesting date as reported by Nasdaq. The vesting date for all the shares reported was January 2, 2020 except as follows: P. Yeager (1,074 shares vested on November 9, 2020), V. Dimond (1,200 shares vested on April 22, 2020), G. DeMartino (2,458 shares vested on February 1, 2020) and D. Beck (1,200 shares vested on July 12, 2020). Further, each Named Executive Officer other than G. DeMartino had a vesting of performance-based restricted stock in shares of common stock for the three-year performance period beginning January 1, 2018. The Compensation Committee of the Board certified performance for the full performance period and approved vesting of the award on December 4, 2020 of 200% of the target, as the requisite EBITDA levels had already been achieved for the performance period. On the vesting date, the following total of performance-based restricted stock settled into shares of common stock: D. Yeager (40,000); P. Yeager (12,000); V. Dimond (14,000); D. Beck (14,000) and T. Pizzuto (18,000).

2020 PENSION BENEFITS

We have omitted the	Pension Ben	efits table becau	ise it is	inapplicable.
---------------------	-------------	-------------------	-----------	---------------

2020 NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Information regarding each Named Executive Officer's participation in our DCP is included in the following table. The material terms of the plan are described after the table. Please also see "Perquisites and Other Compensation" in "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" above.

Name	Executive Contributions in Last FY (\$) ⁽¹⁾	Registrant Contributions in Last FY (\$) ⁽²⁾	Aggregate Earnings in Last FY (\$) ⁽³⁾	Aggregate Withdrawals/ Distributions (\$)	Aggregate Balance at Last FYE (\$) ⁽⁴⁾
D. Yeager	\$474,999	\$28,500	\$226,310	\$641,875	\$4,750,924
P. Yeager	\$ 47,391	\$16,000	\$ 32,709	\$ 45,876	\$ 251,938
G. DeMartino	\$ 71,183	\$13,800	\$ 54,365	\$ -0-	\$ 369,369
V. Dimond	\$ -0-	\$ -0-	\$278,289	\$ 85,381	\$1,898,618
D. Beck	\$ 26,583	\$13,291	\$ 31,871	\$ 29,712	\$ 199,378
T. Pizzuto	\$ 62,384	\$ 8,355	\$307,501	\$ -0-	\$1,575,349

⁽¹⁾ Executive contributions during 2020 are included in "Salary" in the Summary Compensation Table.

Pursuant to the DCP, participating employees can defer up to 50% of their base salary and up to 90% of their annual cash incentive. The DCP also includes a match by our Company. The match currently is equal to 50% of the first 6% of contributions to the plan with a maximum match equivalent to 3% of base salary. The match vests over three years on a cliff basis. The Company match, if vested, and earnings thereon are paid out seven months after separation from service in either a lump sum or over a period of up to ten years, at the employee's election. The match is subject to forfeiture if the participant leaves the Company and goes to work for a competitor.

The DCP is funded and does not provide for a fixed rate of return. The amounts deferred or contributed to the DCP are credited to a liability account, which is then invested at the participant's option in an account that mirrors the performance of a fund or funds selected by the Compensation Committee and reviewed by the Company's 401(k) committee. The investment options that a participating employee may select track commonly available investment vehicles, including mutual funds, bond funds and money market funds. Each participating employee selects from a range of investment options. We then provide an investment return equal to the return from the selected investment options.

The employee's contributions and earnings thereon are paid out upon separation from service or at a predetermined date and may be paid out in a lump sum or over a period of up to ten years.

⁽²⁾ Company contributions are included in "All Other Compensation" in 2020 in the Summary Compensation Table.

⁽³⁾ These amounts are not reported in the Summary Compensation Table because they do not represent above-market or preferential earnings.

⁽⁴⁾ Of the amounts reported, the following were previously reported as compensation for years prior to 2020 in a Summary Compensation Table: D. Yeager (\$1,853,170), P. Yeager (\$75,771), T. Pizzuto (\$268,892), V. Dimond (\$548,310), and D. Beck (\$26,892).

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control

As required, in the following section we disclose the amount that would have been earned by our named executive officers assuming a change of control or a termination due to death or disability on December 31, 2020. Ms. Pizzuto is not included in the table set forth below given her resignation on June 30, 2020, and she did not receive any cash severance or accelerated vesting of equity awards in connection with her retirement.

Pursuant to their award agreements under our Long-Term Incentive Plans, the restricted stock of our named executive officers would vest upon a change of control event. Time-based restricted stock awards also vest on death or disability, and may vest upon a retirement in the discretion of the Compensation Committee (generally, the date of an executive's termination for reasons other than due to death or disability or "for cause," on or after the attainment of age 55, or age 50 plus 10 continuous years of service). Performance-based restricted stock awards, in the discretion of the Compensation Committee, also may vest on death, disability, retirement, or a change of control event (with or without regard to the satisfaction of the applicable performance measures). Additionally, our DCP provides for the vesting of the Company match and any earnings thereon upon a change in control. No Named Executive Officers would be entitled to receive any cash severance amounts or accelerated vesting of equity awards in connection with a termination of employment other than due to death or disability.

Name	Value of Restricted Stock ⁽¹⁾	Deferred Compensation	Total payout upon Change of Control, Death or disability
D. Yeager	\$6,270,000	\$53,623	\$6,323,623
P. Yeager	\$2,224,254	\$33,585	\$2,257,839
G. DeMartino	\$ 845,709	\$27,180	\$ 872,889
V. Dimond	\$2,423,640	\$15,461	\$2,439,101
D. Beck	\$2,225,280	\$28,391	\$2,253,671
T. Pizzuto	\$2,872,800	\$27,676	\$2,900,476

⁽¹⁾ As of December 31, 2020, our Named Executive Officers owned the following number of shares of unvested restricted stock: D. Yeager (110,000); P. Yeager (39,022); T. Pizzuto (50,400); G. DeMartino (14,837); V. Dimond (42,520); and D. Beck (39,040). The value of accelerated restricted stock reported in this column is determined by multiplying the number of unvested shares of restricted stock by \$57.00, which was the closing market price of one share of our Class A common stock on December 31, 2020 as reported by Nasdaq.

Definition of "Change of Control"

For purposes of the foregoing discussion, a change of control is defined as a change in the beneficial ownership of the Company's voting stock or a change in the composition of the Board which occurs as follows: (i) Any "person" (as such term is used in Section 13(d) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act) is or becomes a beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of stock of the Company representing 50 percent or more of the total voting power of the Company's then outstanding stock; or (ii) A tender offer (for which a filing has been made with the SEC which purports to comply with the requirements of Section 14(d) of the Exchange Act and the corresponding SEC rules) is made for the stock of the Company, which has not been negotiated and approved by the Board. In case of a tender offer described in this paragraph, the change in control will be deemed to have occurred upon the first to occur of (A) any time during the offer when the person (using the definition in (i) above) making the offer owns or has accepted for payment stock of the Company with 25 percent or more of the total voting power of the Company's stock, or (B) three business days before the offer is to terminate unless the offer is withdrawn first, if the person making the offer could own, by the terms of the offer plus any shares owned by this person, stock with 50 percent or more of the total voting power of the Company's stock when the offer terminates; or (iii) individuals who were the Board's nominees for election as directors of the Company immediately prior to a meeting of the stockholders of the Company involving a contest for the election of directors shall not constitute a majority of the Board following the election.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Except as disclosed in "Transactions with Management and Others," none of Mses. Boosalis and Ross and Messrs. Slark, Kenny, McNitt, Reaves and Ward, each of whom was a member of our Compensation Committee during all or a portion of 2020: (1) was at any time during 2020 an officer or employee, or was at any time prior to 2020 an officer, of Hub Group or any of our subsidiaries; or (2) had any relationship requiring disclosure

under Item 404 of Regulation S-K. Also, none of our executive officers serve, or in the past fiscal year have served, as a director or compensation committee (or equivalent committee) member of any entity that has an executive officer serving as a Hub Group director or Compensation Committee member.

Compensation Risk Considerations

The Compensation Committee has concluded that the risks created by our overall compensation program are not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Pay Ratio Disclosure

As required by Item 402(u) of Regulation S-K, we are providing the following information about the relationship of the annual total compensation of our employees and our Chief Executive Officer ("CEO"). This pay ratio is a reasonable estimate calculated in a manner consistent with SEC rules based on our payroll and employment records and the methodology described below.

- In 2020, the annual total compensation of the employee identified at median of our company (other than our CEO), was \$65,695; and
- the annual total compensation of the CEO during 2020 for purposes of determining the CEO Pay Ratio was \$3,168,894, as set forth in the Summary Compensation Table.

Based on this information, for 2020, the ratio of the annual total compensation of our CEO to the median of the annual total compensation of all employees was estimated to be 48 to 1.

When identifying the median of the annual total compensation of all our employees, as well as to determine the annual total compensation of the "median employee," we examined our employee population as of November 15, 2020 utilizing the methodology and the material assumptions, adjustments, and estimates below:

- our employee population for purposes of calculating the pay ratio disclosure was 4,883 after excluding, pursuant to SEC rules, 20 employees who work in Canada or Mexico;
- To identify the median compensated employee, we used W-2 Box 5 Medicare wages for the period from January 1, 2020 (the first day of 2020) through December 31, 2020 (the last day of 2020), with such amounts annualized for full-time permanent employees that were not employed by us for the entire year; and
- the median employee's annual total compensation was calculated using the same methodology we use for our CEO as set forth in the 2020 Summary Compensation Table in this proxy statement.

The SEC rules for identifying the median compensated employee and calculating the pay ratio based on that employee's annual total compensation allow companies to adopt a variety of methodologies, to apply certain exclusions, and to make reasonable estimates and assumptions that reflect their compensation practices. As such, the pay ratio reported by other companies may not be comparable to the pay ratio reported above, as other companies may have different employment and compensation practices and may utilize different methodologies, exclusions, estimates and assumptions in calculating their own pay ratios.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP

The following table sets forth the amount of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock beneficially owned by the listed persons as of March 29, 2021. For purposes of this table, a person "beneficially owns" a security if that person has or shares voting or investment power or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days. Unless otherwise noted, to our knowledge, these persons have sole investment and voting power over the shares listed. Percentage computations are based upon 33,764,014 shares of our Class A Common Stock and 662,296 shares of our Class B Common Stock, respectively, outstanding as of March 29, 2021. Beneficial ownership of shares of Class B Common Stock is based on the stock ledger maintained by the Company as of the Record Date and the terms of the Class B Stockholders' Agreement (the "Stockholders Agreement"). Any of our officers and directors may be contacted at our executive offices.

	Number			
Name	Class A	Percentage	Class B	Percentage
David P. Yeager ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾	355,845	1.1%	662,296	100%
Mark A. Yeager ⁽¹⁾⁽³⁾	_	*	662,296	100%
Phillip D. Yeager	70,343	*	_	*
Terri A. Pizzuto ⁽⁷⁾	204,911	*	_	*
Vava P. Dimond	67,128	*	_	*
Douglas G. Beck	78,765	*	_	*
Geoffrey F. DeMartino	24,388			
Martin P. Slark	114,590	*	_	*
Charles R. Reaves	62,021	*	_	*
Jonathan P. Ward	25,689	*	_	*
James Kenny	23,742	*	_	*
Peter McNitt	17,453	*	_	*
Mary H. Boosalis	16,822	*	_	*
Jenell Ross	6,984	*		
All directors, nominees and executive officers (15 people)	958,369	2.8%	662,296	100%
BlackRock, Inc. (4)	5,936,504	17.6%	_	*
The Vanguard Group ⁽⁵⁾	3,289,512	9.7%	_	*
Dimensional Fund Advisors L.P. ⁽⁶⁾	2,506,937	7.4%	_	*

^{*} Represents less than 1% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock.

- (3) Includes 86,794 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by Mark A. Yeager individually, 87,866 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by the Alexander B. Yeager 1994 GST Trust, 87,866 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by the Samantha N. Yeager 1994 GST Trust, 48,715 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by the Mark A. Yeager Non-Exempt Trust, and 331,148 shares of Class B Common Stock beneficially owned by David P. Yeager, to which Mark A. Yeager may be deemed to have shared voting discretion pursuant to the Stockholders' Agreement. Also includes 19,907 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by the Mark A. Yeager Perpetual Trust for which Mark A. Yeager serves as sole trustee and has sole investment and voting discretion. See Notes 1 and 2.
- (4) BlackRock, Inc. ("Blackrock") has sole dispositive power with respect to 5,936,504 shares of Class A Common Stock and sole voting power with respect to 5,755,475 shares of Class A Common Stock. BlackRock's address is 55 East 52nd Street, New York, NY 10055. All information is based solely on Amendment No. 12 to Schedule 13G filed by Blackrock with the SEC on January 25, 2021.
- (5) The Vanguard Group, Inc. ("Vanguard") has sole dispositive power with respect to 3,225,954 shares of Class A Common Stock, shared

⁽¹⁾ David P. Yeager, as trustee, and Mark A. Yeager, individually and as trustee, are parties to the Stockholders' Agreement, pursuant to which they have agreed to vote all of their shares of Class B Common Stock in accordance with the vote of the holders of a majority of such shares at a meeting of the Class B Stockholders held prior to the Annual Meeting, or as recommended by the independent directors of the Board of Directors if there is a deadlock among Class B Stockholders or if a quorum of Class B Stockholders cannot be achieved at the meeting of Class B Stockholders after two attempts. See "Solicitation, Meeting and Voting Information - How will the Class B shares be voted at the Annual Meeting?" for more details. Except as provided in footnotes 2 and 3, each of the Yeager family members disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class B Common Stock held by the other Yeager family members. The Class B Common Stock represents approximately 62.2% of the total votes allocable to the Common Stock. Members of the Yeager family own all of the Class B Common Stock.

⁽²⁾ Includes 21,454 shares of Class A Common Stock owned by the David P. Yeager Nonexempt Trust, 176,276 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by the DPY 2015 Exempt Children's Trust, 51,624 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by the Laura C. Yeager 2015 GST Trust, 51,624 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by the Matthew D. Yeager 2015 GST Trust and 51,624 shares of Class B Common Stock owned by the Phillip D. Yeager 2015 GST Trust and 331,148 shares of Class B Common Stock beneficially owned by Mark A. Yeager, to which David P. Yeager may be deemed to have shared voting discretion pursuant to the Stockholders' Agreement. See Notes 1 and 3.

- dispositive power with respect to 63,558 shares of Class A Common Stock, and shared voting power with respect to 34,360 shares of Class A Common Stock. Vanguard's address is 100 Vanguard Blvd., Malvern, PA 19355. All information is based solely on Amendment No. 9 to Schedule 13G filed by Vanguard with the SEC on February 8, 2021.
- (6) Dimensional Fund Advisors LP ("Dimensional") has sole dispositive power with respect to 2,506,937 shares of Class A Common Stock and sole voting power with respect to 2,417,473 shares of Class A Common Stock. The address of Dimensional is Building One, 6300 Bee Cave Road, Austin, TX 78746. All information is based solely on Amendment No. 4 to Schedule 13G filed by Dimensional with the SEC on February 26, 2021.
- (7) Ms. Pizzuto departed her role as CFO June 30, 2020 and ceased to be a Section 16 reporting person as of that date. The ownership information included is as of the date of her Form 4 filed on January 2, 2020.

PROPOSAL 2: ADVISORY VOTE TO APPROVE NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

In accordance with the SEC's rules, we provide our stockholders with the opportunity to cast an advisory vote regarding the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers as disclosed in the proxy statement. As most recently approved by stockholders at the annual meeting of stockholders in 2017 and consistent with the Board's recommendation, we submit this proposal for a non-binding vote on an annual basis. At our 2020 Annual Meeting, our stockholders overwhelmingly approved the proposal, with over 97% of the votes cast voting in favor of the proposal. Accordingly, this year we again seek your advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers as we have described in "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" and in the accompanying compensation tables and related narrative discussion in the "Executive Compensation" section of this Proxy Statement.

As discussed in detail in the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" section above, the Compensation Committee actively oversees our executive compensation program, adopting changes to the program and awarding compensation as appropriate to reflect Hub Group's circumstances and to promote the main objectives of the program. Our compensation programs are designed to attract, retain, and motivate persons with superior ability, to reward outstanding performance, and to align the long-term interests of our Named Executive Officers with those of our stockholders. Under these programs, our Named Executive Officers are rewarded for the achievement of specific annual and long-term goals and the realization of increased stockholder value. We firmly believe that the information we have provided in this proxy statement demonstrates that our executive compensation program was designed appropriately and is working to ensure that management's interests are aligned with our stockholders' interests to support long-term value creation.

Our Board is asking our stockholders to indicate their support for our Named Executive Officer compensation as described in this proxy statement in accordance with SEC rules by voting for this proposal. Because your vote is advisory, it will not affect any compensation already paid or awarded to any officer nor will it be binding on or overrule any decisions of the Board or the Compensation Committee. Nevertheless, our Board and the Compensation Committee value our stockholders' views and intend to consider the outcome of the vote, along with other relevant factors, when making future decisions regarding executive compensation. This vote is not intended to address any specific item of compensation, but rather the overall compensation of our named executive officers. This advisory vote is not a vote on the compensation of our Board, as described under "Director Compensation," or on our compensation policies as they relate to risk management, as described under "Compensation Risk Considerations" in the "Executive Compensation" section above.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR Proposal 2.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has:

- reviewed and discussed with management the Company's annual audited financial statements for 2020;
- discussed with E&Y, our independent registered public accounting firm, the matters required to be
 discussed by the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
 "(PCAOB") and the SEC;
- received from E&Y the written disclosures and the letter required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding E&Y's communication with the Audit Committee concerning independence; and
- discussed with E&Y its independence.

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the December 31, 2020 audited financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2020 for filing with the SEC.

While the Audit Committee has the responsibilities set forth in its charter (including to monitor and oversee the audit processes), the Audit Committee does not have the duty to plan or conduct audits or to determine that Hub Group's financial statements are complete, accurate or in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Hub Group's management and independent auditor have this responsibility.

This report has been furnished by the members of the Audit Committee:

Peter B. McNitt, Chairman Mary H. Boosalis James C. Kenny Charles R. Reaves Jenell Ross Martin P. Slark Jonathan P. Ward

The above Audit Committee Report does not constitute soliciting material and should not be deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any other Hub Group filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent Hub Group specifically incorporates this report by reference therein.

PROPOSAL 3: RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The Board is asking our stockholders to ratify the Audit Committee's appointment of Ernst & Young, LLP ("E&Y") as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for 2021. Although we are not required to obtain stockholder ratification of the selection of E&Y, our Board and Audit Committee believe that the selection of an independent registered public accounting firm is an important matter and in the best interests of stockholders.

Who is responsible for the selection of the independent auditor?

The Audit Committee is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, retention, and oversight of the independent auditor that is retained to audit our financial statements.

Was the Audit Committee involved in the lead audit partner selection process?

Yes. Prior to the selection of the current lead audit partner, the Chairman of the Audit Committee interviewed the lead audit partner candidates, and the Audit Committee discussed with management such candidates' qualifications and experience.

Does the Audit Committee evaluate the independent auditor and the lead audit partner?

Yes. The Audit Committee annually evaluates the lead audit partner, as well as the independent auditor's qualifications, performance, and independence. The evaluation, which includes the input of management, entails consideration of a broad range of factors, including the quality of services and sufficiency of resources that have been provided; the skills, knowledge, and experience of the firm and the audit team; the effectiveness and sufficiency of communications and interactions; independence and level of objectivity and professional skepticism; reasonableness of fees; and other factors.

Who has the Audit Committee selected as the independent registered public accounting firm?

After conducting the evaluation process discussed above, the Audit Committee selected E&Y as our independent auditor for 2021. E&Y has served in that capacity since October 2002. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors believe that the continued retention of E&Y is in the best interests of Hub Group and our stockholders.

Will representatives of Ernst & Young LLP attend the Annual Meeting?

Yes. Representatives of E&Y have been requested and are expected to attend the virtual Annual Meeting. These representatives will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to any appropriate questions submitted by stockholders.

What if stockholders do not ratify the appointment?

If the appointment of E&Y as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2021 is not ratified by our stockholders, the adverse vote will be considered a direction to the Audit Committee to consider other auditors for next year. However, because of the difficulty in making any substitution of auditors after the beginning of the current year, the 2021 appointment will stand, unless the Audit Committee finds other good reason to make a change.

The Board unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" Proposal 3.

FEES PAID TO AUDITORS

The fees billed by E&Y in 2020 and 2019 for services provided to us were as follows:

	2020	2019
Audit Fees ⁽¹⁾	\$2,178,738	\$2,625,793
Audit-Related Fees ⁽²⁾	\$ 265,000	\$ —
Tax Fees ⁽³⁾	\$ 17,467	\$ 17,000
All Other Fees ⁽⁴⁾	<u>\$</u>	\$ 400,143
TOTAL	<u>\$2,461,205</u>	\$3,042,936

^{(1) &}quot;Audit Fees" are the aggregate fees billed by E&Y for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements, audit of the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls over financial reporting and review of the financial statements included in the Company's quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or services that are normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements during 2020 and 2019.

- (3) "Tax Fees" are the aggregate billed by E&Y during 2020 and 2019 for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.
- (4) There were no fees paid in 2020 that would categorize as "All Other Fees". "All Other Fees" in 2019 related to pre-implementation of our ERP conversion.

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services to be provided by the Company's independent auditors and has established pre-approval policies and procedures for such services. Permissible non-audit services are those allowed under SEC regulations. The Audit Committee may approve certain specific categories of permissible non-audit services within an aggregated budgeted dollar limit upon the opinion that such services will not impair the independence of the independent auditor. The Audit Committee must approve on a project-by-project basis any permissible non-audit services that do not fall within a pre-approved category, or pre-approved permissible non-audit services that exceed the previously approved fees. The Audit Committee's Chairman (or any Committee member if the Chairman is unavailable) may pre-approve such services between Committee meetings and must report to the Committee at its next meeting with respect to all services so pre-approved. All services provided by E&Y during 2020 and 2019 were approved by the Audit Committee and were permissible under applicable laws and regulations and will continue to be pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

^{(2) &}quot;Audit-Related Fees" are the aggregate fees billed by E&Y during for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company's financial statements and not included in the "audit fees" described above. The 2020 Audit-Related Fees relate to acquisitions made or contemplated by the Company, as well as assistance with financial due diligence for potential acquisitions. We did not incur any Audit-Related Fees in 2019.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2022 ANNUAL MEETING

All stockholder proposals and notices discussed below must be mailed to Corporate Secretary, Hub Group, Inc., 2000 Clearwater Drive, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523. Stockholder proposals and director nominations that are not included in our proxy materials will not be considered at any annual meeting of stockholders unless such proposals have complied with the requirements of our amended and restated Bylaws.

Stockholder Proposals

Proposals of eligible stockholders that comply with Exchange Act Rule 14a-8 must be received in writing by the Corporate Secretary no later than December 8, 2021, in order to be considered for inclusion in the Company's proxy statement and form of proxy relating to the 2022 Annual Meeting.

New Business at 2022 Annual Meeting

The Company anticipates that the 2022 Annual Meeting will be held in May 2022. If a stockholder desires to submit a proposal for consideration at the 2022 Annual Meeting, written notice of such stockholder's intent to make such a proposal must be given and received by the Corporate Secretary of the Company at the principal executive offices of the Company either by personal delivery or by United States mail no earlier than February 23, 2022 nor later than March 25, 2022. Each notice must describe the proposal in sufficient detail for the proposal to be summarized on the agenda for the 2022 Annual Meeting and must set forth: (i) the name and address, as it appears on the books of the Company, of the stockholder who intends to make the proposal; (ii) a representation that the stockholder is a holder of record of stock of the Company entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at such meeting to present such proposal; and (iii) the class and number of shares of the Company which are beneficially owned by the stockholder. In addition, the notice must set forth the reasons for conducting such proposed business at 2022 Annual Meeting and any material interest of the stockholder in such business. The presiding officer of the 2022 Annual Meeting will, if the facts warrant, refuse to acknowledge a proposal not made in compliance with the foregoing procedure, and any such proposal not properly brought before the 2022 Annual Meeting will not be considered.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Lougher & Beck

DOUGLAS G. BECK

Secretary

Oak Brook, Illinois April 12, 2021

Each stockholder, whether or not he or she expects to access the virtual Annual Meeting, is requested to please vote your proxy either by mail, telephone or over the Internet as promptly as possible. A stockholder may revoke his or her proxy at any time prior to voting.



